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PRAXIS FIIIES
MUTUAL BENEHT ASSOCI,AMON, NC.
#35 Paseo del Congreso, Catmon, City of Malolos, Bulacan

TeL No. (a++) tgt-lsss: (o++)'66242ss

STATEMf,NT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBITITY
FSR FINANI IAt ST.&TEEXENTS

The management of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules

attached therein, for the years ended December 3L, 2018 and.Z017, including the additional
components attached therein, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting
framewark indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements management is responsible for assessing the
Association's ability to continue as a gcing concer& disclosing as applicable matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Association or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Association's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Trustees rerriews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the members-

AMC & Associates, the independent auditor appointed by the members, has audited the

financial statements af the Association in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing
and in its report to the mernbers has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation

upon completion of such audit

MR. RAMON V. BIAGAY
ChAirman

Q-,-, o _!;"*tr
#o. *r**R c. rucrANo rntossfficxuz

Tr$sarerPresident

Signed this 15e day of April?}Lg
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Trustees
Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association,Inc'
(A N on- St o ck, N on-P r ofit O rg aniz ati ot)

35 Paseo del Congreso, Catmon
Malolos, Bulacan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opirrion

We have auclited tl"re financial staternents of I'raxis Ficles Mutual Benefit Association, Inc'

(the Association), which comprise the statem€nts of, finarrcial ptt'l::]l 
^1^ 1:oii)ece*be. 31, 20L8 and,2017, anc{ the staternents of cornprehensive income, statements

changes in funcl balance and statements of cash flows for the years then ended and a summary

signiiicant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements plesent fairly, in all material respects, the

fir-ranciai position of the Association as at December 31, 20LB and 2017, and its financial

p"rfor*urce ancl its cash flows for the years then endecl in accorclance with Philippine Financial

iteporUng Standarcls (PFRS) applicable to Mutual Benefit Associations (MBAs)'

Basis for Opinion

We conclucted our auclits in accordance witl-r Pirilippine Standards on Ar"rditir-rg (PSA)' Our

responsibilities uncler those stanciarcls are further clescribed in the Autlitors' Responsibilities for tlrc

atiait oy the Finnncinl Stntetnents section of our report. We are itrllepetrdent of the Association in

accorciarrce with the Cade of Ethics.[or Profcssiatrnl Actotttrtrtrtts in tlrc Phili1rpirrcs (Code of Etl-rics)

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to oltr ar-rdits of the iirrancial statements

ir-r the philippines, ancl we have fulfiilecl our other ethical responsibilities in accordance witl-r

these requirements ancl the Cocle of Etl-rics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtairred

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis ior our opinion.

Responsibilities of Managetneri and Those Charged tuitll Goaenmnce for the Financial

Ststements

of

Management is responsible for the preparation and

in accorclance with PFRS applicable to MBAs, and

cletermines is necessary to enable the preparation

fair preser-rtation of the financial statements

for such internal conh'ol as management

of financial statements that are free frorn

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association's

abiiityto coirtinue as a going collcern, clisclosing, as applicaLrle, matters related to going concern

ancl usilg the going .or."., basis of accournting uuless lrattagenlent either iutends to lieluiclate

the Association or to cease operatior-rs, or has no realistic irlteruative irtrt to clo so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeitrg the Association's firrancial

reporting process.

Suite 1805 - 1807 Citylard Cottilominiutn l0, Tower 2, HY. Delo Costa SL, Maketi City, Pkihppixes
Tel.No.: (02r 841.0462 . FaxNo.: $2) 893.0287
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Auclitors' Responsibilities fot the Audit of tlte Einancial Staterttents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assLrrance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material rnisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auclitors' report that inclucles our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but

is not a guai.antee that an auclit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements cau arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, irrclivicluall-y or in tl-re aggregate, they could reasonably be expectec"l to ir-rfluence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit irr accordauce n,ith PSA, we exercise professional juclgrrrerrt arld rnailrtain

professional skepticism throughout tire audit. We also:

. Iclentify ancl assess the risks of material rnisstatement of the financial statements, w'hether

due to fraucl or error, clesign ancl perforn-r audit procedures responsive to tl-rose risks, and

obtain aurc-lit evidence that is sufficient ancl appropriate to provide a basis for our opiniotr.

The risk of not cletecting a material rnisstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulfing from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, iutentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtairl an understancling of internal control relevant to tl-re audit il order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circnmstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of tl're Association's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounling policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures rnade by rnanagement.

. Conclucle on the appropriaterress of management's Llse of the going concerlr basis of
accouinting and, basecl on ihe ar-rdit evidence obtained, whether a material utncertairrtY exists

relatecl to events or cotrditir:ns that rnalr cast significant doubi on the Associatiotr's abiliiy to
continue as a goitrg collcern. If we corrclude that a material uncertait"tty exists, we are

requirecl to draw attentior-r in our aurditols' report to tl"re relatted disclosures in the financial
statements or, if sr-rch c{isclosures are inadequate, to rnoclify our opinion. Our conclttsiotrs are

based on the-audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors'report. Howet,er, future
events or conditions may caurse the Association to cease to continue as a goirrg concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of tl-re financial statements, includir-rg

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a maruler that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged witl-r governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our auclits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial

statements taken as a whole, The supplemer-rtary inJormation for the year ended

December 31, 2018 required by the Bureau of Internal Reventte as disclosed in Note 28 to the

financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of

the basic financial statements prepared in accordance lvith PFRS applicable to MBAs. Such

supplernentary information is the responsibility of matragernent. The supplementary infonnation
has been sr"rbjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of tl're basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic

financial statements taken as a whole.

AMC & ASSOCIATES

Q,pD.C*A.A
By: Ariel D. Gonzales L_)

Partner
CPA Certification No. 89570
TrN 169-688-077-000
PTR No. 7336494,Jan.7,2019, Makati City
BIR Accreclitation No. 08-003584-1-2019

(Mar. 05, 2019 to Mar. 05, 2022)
BSP Accreclitation (Category B)

(valid until Dec. 37,2020)
IC Accreditation No. SP-2018/003-R

(Mar. 3, 2018 to Mar. 2, 2021)
SEC Accreditation No.1331-AR-1 (Group C)

(Sep. 28, 2076 to Sep. 27, 2019)

April15, 2019

FIRM ACCREDITAT]ON
Aqrino, Mata, Calica & Associates
BOA Accrcditation No. 4275 - valid until June 28, 2020
SEC Accreditation No. 016r1-FR-2 (Group B) - Septenrber 14, 2016 to September 13, 2019
BIR Accreditation No. 08-0025824-2017 - valid urtil December 21, 2020
lC Accreditation No. F-2018/002-R - March 3,2018 to March e 2021

BSP Accreditation (Category B) - valid until December 31, 2020

3-

DANAIUT, M.

CDA CEA No. 0075-AF - March 20, 2018 to March 19, 2021
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PRACTITIONER'S COMPILATION REPORT

To the Management
Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Assbciation,Inc.
(A N on-Sto ck, N on-Prcfit Organization)
35 Paseo del Congreso, Catnon
Malolos, Bulacan

I have compiled the accompanying financial statements of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit
Associatiory Inc. (A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization) based on information you have
provided. These financial statements comprise the statement of financial position of Praxis Fides
Mutual Benefit Association,Inc. as at December 31,2018, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in fund balance and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

I have performed this compilation engagement in accordance with Philippine Standard on Related
Services 4410 (Revis ed), Compilation Engagements.

I have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the preparation
and presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS) applicable to Mutual Benefit Associations (MBAs). I have complied with relevant
ethical requirements, including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due
care.

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the inJormation used to compile
them are your responsibility.

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagemen! I am not required to verify the
accuracy or completeness of the inJormation you provided to me to compiie these financial
statements. Accordingly, I do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion on whether these
financial statements are prepared in accordance with PFRS applicable to MBAs.

GARCIA REYES
Public Accountant

CPA Certificate No. 094539
TIN 143-345-6551000
BIR Accreditation No. 05-004260-001-2016

valid until September \5,?019
PRC/BOA Certificate of Accreditation No. 3085

valid until October 25,2021-
CDA Accreditation No. CEA 0135 (Renewal)

valid untii February 20,2020
PTR No. 2482842, Jan. 1.4, 2019, Plaridel, Bulacan



PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A N an-Stock, N on-Profit O rganization)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSTTION

DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(Am oturts fu Philipp brc P es o)
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2017

+ssi-Ts
CURRENTASSETS

Cash and casl'r equivalents (Notu 5)

Slrort-term investments {Note 6)

Loaru and other receivables (Note 7)

Financial assets at amortized cost (Nofe 8)

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (Note 9)

Prepayments

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Loans and other receivables (Note 7)

Financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income (Note 1-A)

Property and equipment (Note 11)

Investment property (Note 12)

Total Non-current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILMES AND FUND BALANCE

CURITENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other liabilities (Nofe 13)

Liability on individual equity value (Note 14)

Basic contingent benefit reserve (Note 15)

Claims payable on basic contingent benetit (Note 16)

Income tax payable

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Acconnts payable and other liabilities (Note 13)

Retirement benefit obligation (Note 2'l)

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

FTIND BALANCE
Free and unassigired fund balance

Assigned fund balance (Nate 79)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 19)

Total Fund Balance

TOTALLIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

99,593,135

583,837 986,359

63&890,161 568,560,677

799,956,072

87,248,155

222,805,766

3,000,000

13L,196,331

181,,840,569

27,540,400

75,376,247

91,057,602

315,774,418

l__-____211,66!,s72

P 209,768,424

30,988,917

227,?23,,792

1,47,747,509

22,500,000

16,245,764

93,437,25s

279,530,5?S

P 84&091,155

P 10722,020

677,322,919

1",167,724
-t,rc0,4w

96,752

691,038,815

42,324

5,627,721

6,669,445

697,708,260

P 12,932,248

607,1,99,316

982,862

L,835,000

38,931

616,988,357

t51,0'17

6,627,12'l

6,778,138

623,766.495

See N otes to Eitarcial Statefireris,

/24,704,156
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PRA)OS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFTT ASSOCIATION,INC.
(A N o n- St o cb N o n-P rcf it O r g aniz ati on)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSTVE INCOME

FOR TFTE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,20L8 AND 2017

(Amornts tu Philipptue Peso)

2018 2017

REVENUES

Interest on:

Loans (l,lote 7)

Investment securities and deposits

with banks (Notes 5, 6, 8 and 1A)

Insurance fund (Note L8)

General fund (Note 78)

Service charges and fees (Note 7)

lncome from sale of financial assets at fair value

through profit or Ioss (Note 9)

Membership fees (Note 1"8)

Others (I'lote 1,7)

EXPENSES
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 9)

Operating expenses (Note 77)

Benefit expenses (Note 77)

PROETTBEFORETAX

TAX EXPENSE (Note22)

NETPROFIT

oTHER COMPREHENSTVE TNCOME (LOSS)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss 

.

Remeasurements of post-employment

defined benefit obligation (Nofes L9 and 21")

Items that will be reelassified subsequently
to profit or loss

Fair value loss on available-for-sale (AFS)

financial assets during the year (Note 9)

Fair value Ioss on disposed of AFS financial assets

reclassified to profit or loss Q,lote 9)

P 38,872,048

7,306,M6

25,637,592

73,604734

7An,373

2,096,939

7,794,300

6,760107

702,9{1,578

3,978,709

33,043,605

8,rt5t0oo

45477,314

57,454254

1,996,005

55,469,Ni9

P 55A68,259:

SeeNotes to Fiflancial Statements.

31,984,881

4,171,569

22,804,068

14,663,020

7,1s9,950

2,569,996

924,400

5,035,332

89,321,076

26,817,342

7420,040

34,237,342

55,083,674

't,712,?33

53,371,M\

( 2,109,635 )

y______51,262,806

,,rV't * -, 
rtr\SI p,u\ ),ir 
"."

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME



PRA)OS FIDES MUTUAL BENEflTASSOCIATION, INC
(A N on-Sto cb Nott-Ptoftt Organizatiort)

STATTMENTS OI CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCE

rOR TTIE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018 AND 2017
(Atttotmts ln Phillpptun P cao)

freeandunassigtred AeslgnedFund
Fud balance Balanee

Accumulated Other Total
Comprchenslveloss (AsRestated)

Balance at Jmuary 1, 2018

As previously reported (Nole 19)

Effect of adpotion of PFRS 9 (Not?s 19)

As Estated fNole 19)

Contributiors during the year (Nole 18)

Withdrawals during the year

Transfer to [ability on Mividual equity value (Note 14)

Total comprchensive revenue for the year

Balance at Decemb€t 37, 2018 (Nole 79)

Balme at January 1,2017 (Nore 19)

Contrlbutions during the year (Note 18)

Withdrawals during the year

Transfer to liability on indivldual equity value (Nole 14)

Total comprehensive revenue for the year

Balance at December37,20\7 (Note 79)

I 2,41v,756 P aO,O0O,0OO lP z;ru,tzz) \ 2s6,9s63le

P 205,885,809

( 15,413312)

7n,47L497
$6117,862

( 113,4:r0,8s9)

I 76;t4,603'l
55,468259

P 796,920,412

L4,n8378
( 111,847180)

( 78,676,982'

53371,47

40,000,000 ( v 4,56t;491
75,473372

7).47,837 )

P 224324,660

22432L660
L66,7t7862

( 113130tr59)
( 76,1A,603)

55,468,89

P Tt6A678Xi
147J18318

( 111&9380)
( 78,676,9',i)Z)

sL,26?806

P 2432q660

40,000000 (

40000,000 ( P 2aA52,574)

( 2,10&63s)

( P 22561,1{9)P 206,s85909 P 40,000000

SeeNotcs to Filmlclal Statemcnts.

l4AY ,l,tt ttts
SiHfflvr*.o,



PRA)OS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INc.
(A N on-S t o ck, N an-P rofit O rg attiz atl o n)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBERgI,2018 AND2017

(Aatotmts bt Philipplne Peso)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVTTIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Impairment losses (Note 7)

Unrealized fair value Ioss of financial
assets at fair value tfuough profit or loss (Note 9)

Depreciation (Nates 71 nnd 12)

Income from sale of financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss (Nofe 9)

Gain on sale of investment properfi (Note 1"2)

Interest income (Notes 5, 6, 7 nnd 1.0)

Gain on sale of property and equipment (Nofe I7)
Operating profit before working capital changes

Increase in loans and o*rer receivables
Decrease in prepayments

lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities
Increase (decrease) in claims payable on basic contingent benefit
Increase in retirement benefit obligation
Increase in basic contingent benefit reserve

Cash generated from (used in) operations
lnterest received on loans and other receivables (Noh 7)

Cash paid for income taxes (Note 22)

Net Cash From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVTTIES
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Interest received on bank deposits and invesment

securites (Notes 5, 6, nnd 10)

Proceeds from sale of investment property (Note 12)
Increase in investment property (Note 72)

Acquisitions of property and equipment (Nole 11)

Increase in financial assets at amortized cost (Nofe g)

Increase in financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Additions to financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss (Nota 9)
Decrease (increase) in short-term investsnents
Proceeds from sale of investment property (Note 12)

Net Cash Used in lnvesting Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Members'contributions during the year (Note 1g)
Membersr withdrawals during the year

Net Cash From Financing Activities

NET TNCREASE (DECREASE) rN CASH AND CASH EQUWALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS
ATBEGINNING OFYEAR

CASII AND CASH EQUTVALENTS AT END oB YEAR (Note 5)

766,777,862 1,47,118,378
( rr3A30,8s9) ( 111,S42330)

P 57,464,264

5128,721

3,vl8,709

7,585,794

( 2,0e6e38 )
( 2,y1.o3781

( 46,178494)

2m7

P 55,083,674

3,300,000

1,,639,788

_2,568,896)

36,156,450)
21&000 )

21,080116

4,399,760)

6,734

1,,663,978

460000

444,797

730,744

1938sA09

29,501.,560

76,971,678

( 26,884,3741

302,SZZ

( 2,378,9t1)

101000 )

784',862

( 1L,849,2331

30,95L667
( 7,938,7841

1.7,764,650

( 2,386,694)

46,500,275

15,59&168

7,306,M6

4454,718

435,913

( n6,27zl (

( 3,000,000 )

( s,000,000 ) (

53,287,003

( 9,872,ss2,

209.768.424

P 199.956.072

25145,497

4,171,,569

7,569,380

_7,864,636)

1000,000 )

43,865,712)

4857,801
228,000

8,798,10'1.)

35,270,938

72973,112

136,795372

P 209,768,424

Eee Notes to Einancial Statefierrts.
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PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.
(A N on-Sto ck, N on-Ptofit Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2018 AND 2017

(Amounts in PhiliPPine P es o)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

O rg aniz ati o n and Obi e ctiu e s

praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (the Association) was incorporatecl in the

philippines on February 17,1987 primarily to foster-brotherhood thru mutual help and

Uene'ni among its members, to encourage the habit of tluift and saving among its members,

to provide fii.ancial material aicl and comforts to members and their families in cases of

losses, disability, necessities, unemployment, retirement, or old age as may be authorized by

statutes of regulations prescribeci by competent authority, and in general to do such acts

anci things uia to undlrtake such activities not ot{rerwise prohibited by law which are

calculatei to help members ancl necessary for the accomplishment of the purPose of which

the association has been organized.

The registered office of the Association is located at 35 Paseo del Congreso, CahnorL

Malolos, Bulacan.

TaxExanptian

As a non-stock, non-profit association, the Association is exempt from the payment of
income tax uncler Section 30c of the National Internal Revenue Code. However, the income

of whatever kincl and character of the Association from any of its properties, real or

personal, or from any of its activities conducted for profi! regardless of the disposition

made of such income, shall be subjected to tax. Moreover, interest income derived from
deposit with banks is subject to final tax.

Approaal of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Association as at and for the year ended December S'1,2078

(inclucting the comparative financial statements as at and for the year ended

becembei 31,, 2017) were author2ed for issue by the Association's Board of Trustees on

April15,2019.

2. MEMBERSHIP

Any person eligible for membership shall become a member of the Association only after

paiing the initial membership fee and the fust monthly conffibution. Evgry member in

looa ltur",aing shall have the right, among otherc, to participate in the distribution of profit

of Ur" Association on the basis of his capital contributions after the Association has set aside

such reserves as may be requirecl by any existing laws and regulations. In addition, the

member can avail of loans in accordance with his borrowing capacity subject to the

limitations as providecL for under the existing rules and regulations of the Association.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial

statements are summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the

years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Pteparation of Financial Statmtents

n. Statement of Conrykance with Ptdtippine Financinl Reporting Standnrds for Mutual Benefits

Associations (MBAs)

Tl-re financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financiat Reporting Standards in the Philippines applicable to MBAs.

Pursuant to Section 189 of The Amended Insurance Code, the Insurance Commission

issued Circular Letter No. 201441 dated September 25,20L4 requiring all new and existing

mutual benefits associations doing business in the Philippines to use and maintained tlre

revisec{ Standard Chart of Accounts (SCA) for MBAs. The SCA is the prescribed

frameworks for Association in the preparation of financial statements.

The SCA for MBAs list a uniform system of account numbers categorized based on MBAs'

revenue, expenses, assets,liabilities and fund value for similar transactions and events, in
compliance with the latest Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine
Financial Reporting Shndards (PFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by

PFRS for each type of assets, liabilities, income and expense. The measurement bases are

more fully described in the accounting policies that follow'

b. Presentatiott of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Stnteruents. The Association Presents all items

of income and expenses in a single statement of comprehensive income.

The Association presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the

preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a

ietrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on the

informafion in the statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding

periocl. The related notes to the third statement of financial position are not required to
be disclosed.

Ir:r 2018, the Association adopted PFRS 9, Financial lnstrumnis, which was applied using

the tr.ansitional relief allowed by the standard. This allows the Association not to restate

its prior periods' financial statements. Differences arising from the adoption of PFRS 9

in relation to classification and measurement and impairment of financial assets are

recognized in the opening balance of Free and unassigned fund balance (or other

component of fund balance, as appropriate) in the current year. The adoption of this

standard did not have significant impact in the Association's financial statements.

Further, the Association adopted PFRS 15, Reaenue from Contracls zuith Custonters, which

was applied using the modifiecl retrospective approach. Adoption of this standard did
not have maGrial impact in the financial statements of the Association.
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Accordingl|, the adoption of these two new accounting shndards
Association to present its third statement of financial position.

not require the

The table below shows the impact of the adoption of PFRS 9 to flre Association's fund
balance as at January 1.,2A1.8:

Effects on

Free and
Accumulated

Other
Unassigned Comprehensive

Balance Loss Total

P 206,885,809 (P 22,561.,"t49) P 184,324,660/

c. Functional and Presentafiott Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos,
functional currency and presentation currency, and all values
amounts except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Association are
functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the
environment in which the Association operates.

Acloption of Neco and Arnendetl PERS

a. Effectiae in 20L8 that are Releaant to the Association

Balance at January 1, 2018
Impact of PFRS 9

Effect of reclassification of
financial assets

Net carrying amount

PFRS 9

PFRS 15

-Annual Improvements to
PFRS 1 (Amendmenb)
PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle)

( 75,413,312)

P 19L.472.497
,!

1,5,413,312

E-----L1A2,831-Y y--jde$2*,65L

tl're Association's
represent absolute

measured using its
primary economic

The Association adopted for the first time the following amendment and interpretation
to PFRS that are relevant to the Association and effective for financial statements for the
annual period beginning on or afterJanuary 1,,2018:

: Financiallnstruments
: Revenue from Contract with Customers;

Clarifications to PFRS 15

First time Adoption of Pl'rilippine Financial
Reporting Standards - Deletion of
Short-term Exemptions
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Discussed below are tlre relevant information about these amended standards:

PAS 40 (Amendment), Inaestnwnt Property - Reclassification to and from inaestment
property. The amendment states flrat an entity shall transfer a property to, or from,
inveshnent properfy whery and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A
change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investnent property. A change in management's intentions for the use of a property
by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use. The amendment provided a

non-exhaustive list of examples constituting change in use. The application of this
amendment has no material impact on the Association's financial statements.

PFRS 9 (201.4), Financial lnstruruents (issued in 2014). This new standard on financial
instruments will replace PAS 39, Financial lnstruments: Recognitiott nnd MeasuretnellL

and PFRS 9 (2009,2010 and 20L3 versions). This standard contains, an'rong others,
the following:

three principal classification categories for financial assets based on the business
model on how an entity is managing its financial instruments, i.e., financial
assets at amortized costs, fair value tluough profit and loss (FVTPL), and fair
value through other comprehensive income fiVOCI);

an expected credit loss (ECL) model in determining impairment of all debt
financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), wllich generally depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of such financial assets; and,

a new model on hedge accounting that provides significant improvemen8
principally by aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk
management activities undertaken by entities when hedging their financial and
non-financial risk exposures.

The Association's new accounting policies relative to the adoption of PFRS 9 is
fully disclosed in the succeeding paragraph.

The impact of the adoption of this new accounting standard to the Association's
financial statements are as follows:

lnaestment Secuities Reclassif.ed fram Auailahle-for-Snle Financinl Assets to Fair Value
Tllrough Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

The Association elected to present in Fair Value Tluough Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
the listed equity securities previously classified as AFS firrancial assets because
these investments are held as short-to-medium term. As a resul! certain equity
securities with fair value of P99,593,135 were reclassified from AFS financial assets
to FVTPL and the accumulated fair value losses on those financial assets
amounting to y75A13,312,. were reclassified from Accumulated other
comprehensive account to Free and unassigned fund balance account as at January
'1,2018.

b.

c.



-5 -
lnaestment Securities Reclassifud from Aaailable-for-Sale Financial Assets to Fair Value

Througlr Other Comprehensioe Income (FVOCI)

With respect to unquoted equity securities amounting to P500,000 as at January 1,

2018 which were previously classified as AFS financial assets, the Association
elected to irrevocably designate these equity securities at FVOCI, as the assets are
now held by the Association with the objective of selling in the future for liquidity
Purposes.

Debt lnstruments Reclassifed from Held-to-Manity to FVOCI

The Association redassified govemment bonds under HTM investrnents as FVOCI
since the Association's management determined that the objective of the
Company's business model is to hold these investrnents with the objective of
selling in the future for liquidity purposes.

The table below summaries the effects of the adoption of PFRS 9 (201,4) in the
carrying amounts and presentation of the categories of the financial assets in the
statement of financial position as at January L, 2018. The adoption of PFRS 9 has
no significant impact on the Association's financial liabilities.

Carrying Value Carrying Value
PAS39 PFRS 9

Decernber 31, January 1,
2017 Reclassificarion 2018

Einarcial asset at FWPL:
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial asset at FVTPL

Net carrying amount

Financial asset at FVOCI:
Available-for-sale financial assets
HTM investments
Fhrancial asset at FVOCI

Net carrying amount

P___W-5%fis E_-:_ E__99.59i1135

(P 99,593,135) P -
99,593,135 99,593.135

(P s00,000) P -
( 22,000,000)

22.500.000 22,500.000/

P 99,593,"t35

P 500,000
22,000,000

P---22500.000 E----:-, E--12,500,800 -

iii. PFRS 15, Reoenue from Contract with Customers, together with the Clarifications to
PFRS 15 (herein referred to as PFRS 15). This standard will replace PAS 18,
Revenue, and PAS 1'L, Constntction Contracls, the related Interpretations on revenue
recognition: International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15, Agreement for tlte Construction of Renl
Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers nnd Stnnding Interpretatiotts
Comruittee 3L, Reaenue - Barter Transactions lnaolaing Adaertisittg Seroices. This new
standard establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to
recognize revenue and how much revenue to recognize. The core principle in the
said framework is for an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. The Association's adoption of PFRS L5 has resulted in changes in its
accounting policies and has no material impact to flre'Association's t'inancial
statements.
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iv. Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2015 Cycle. Among the improvements, the

following amendment is relevant to the Association but had no material impact on

the Association's financial statemenb as this amendment merely clarify existing
requirements:

PFRS 1 (Amendments), First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

- Deletion of Short-term Exenrptions. The amendments removed short-term
exemptions in PFRS 1 covering PRFS 7, Financial lnstrunrcnt: Disclosures, PAS 19,

Emptoyee Benefits, and PFRS 1A, Consolidated Financial Statenrcnfs, because the

reporting period to which the exemptions applied have already transpired.

b. Effectiae in 20L8 that are nat Releaant to the Association

The following new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing standards
are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after January L, 2018 but
are not relevant to the Association's financial statements:

PFRS 2 (Amendments) : Share-based Payment - Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

IFRIC 22 : Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

c. Effectiae Subsequent to 20L8 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing standards
effective for annual periods subsequent to 20L8 which are adopted by the FRSC.
Management will adopt the following relevant pronouncements in accordance with
their transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated, none of these
pronouncements are expected to have significant impact on the Associatiorfs
financial statements:

PAS 19 (Amendments), Employee Benefts - Plan Attentlment, Curtailruent or

Settlenrcnt (effective January 1,, 2019). The amendments require the use of
updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest
for the remainder of the arurual reporting period after the plan amendment
curtailment or settlement when the entity remeasures its net defined benefit

.liability (asset).

PFRS 9 (Amendment), Fhtnncial lnstrunwnts - Prepnynrcnt Feah,u'es witlt Negatiae

Compensatioru (effective from January 1, 201,9). The amendment clarifies that
prepayment features with negative compensation attached to financial
instruments may still qualify under the SPPI test. As such, the financial assets

containing prcpayment features with negative compensation may still be

classified at amortized cost or at Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVfOCi). Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard in
its financial statements.

11.



111.

-7 -

PFRS 16, Ixases (effective from January '1,, 2079). The new standard will
eventually replace PAS77, Leases.

For lessees, it requires to account for leases "on-balance sheet" by recognizing a

"right of use" asset and a lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured as

the present value of future lease payments. For this PurPose, lease payments
include fixed, non-cancellable payments for lease elements, amounts due under
residual value guarantees, certain types of contingent payments and amounts due
during optional periods to the extent that extension is reasonably certain. ln
subsequent periods, the 'right-of-use" asset is accounted for similarly to a

purchased asset and depreciated or amortized. The lease liability is accounted for
similarly to as financial liability using the effective interest method. llowever, the
new standard provides important reliefs or exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets. If these exemptions are used the accounting is similar
to operating lease accounting under PAS77 where lease paymenb are recognized
as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis
(if more representative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS LZs. In particular, the distinction
between finance and operating leases is retained. The definitions of each type of
lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance lease, are substantially the same
as PAS 17s. The basic accounting mechanics are also similar, but with some
different or more explicit guidance in few areas. These include variable
payments, sub-leases, lease modifications, the treahnent of initial direct costs and
lessor disclosures.

Management is currently assessing the impact of this new shndard in its financial
statements.

IFRIC ?3, Uncertflin oaer Income Tu Trutmenfs (effective from January 7,2019).
The interpretation provides clarification on the determination of hxable profit,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credib, and tax rates when there is
uncertainty over income tax treahents. The core principle of the interpretation
requires the Bank to consider the probability of the tax keahnent being accepted

by the taxation authority. When it is probable that the tax treatrnent will be

accepted, the determination of the taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses,

.unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be on the basis of the accepted tax
treatrnent. Otherwise, the Association has to use the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on the surrounding circumstances, in determining the
tax accounts identified immediately above. Management is currently assessing

the impact of this new standard in its financial statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle. Among the improvements, the
following amendments are relevant to the Association but had no material impact
on the Association's financial statements as these amendments merely clariff
existing requirements :

a. PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrwing costs - E$gibility for Capitalization. Tllre
amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which remains outstanding
after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended purpose, such
borrowing will then form part of the entity's general borrowings when
calculating the capihlization rate for capitalization purposes.

1V.

v.
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Financial Instnrmmts

a. Financial Assets

Financial asseb are recognized when the Association becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the financial instruments. Except for those receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the transaction price in accordance
with PFRS 15, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs (where applicable). For purposes of classifying financial asseb, an
instrument is considered as an equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the
definition of equlty for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS 32, Financial
lnstruments: Presentation A11 other non-derivative financial instrumenb are treated as
debt instruments.

Classifi.cation, Measuremmt and Reclassiftcation of Financial Assets in Accordance with
PFRS 9

Under PFRS 9, the classification and measurement of financial asseb is driven by the
entit5/s business model for managing the financial asseb and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. The dassification and measurement of financial
assets are described in the succeeding pages.

i. Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial asseb are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met (and are not designated as FVT?L):

. the asset is held within the business model whose o$ective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows ('hold to collect''); and,

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') on the principal
amount outstanding.

Except for loans and receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component and are measured at the transaction price in accordance with PFRS 1t all
financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. These are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

The Associatior/s financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the statement of
financial position as Cash and cash equivalents, Short-term investnnents and
investrrenb securities presented at Financial assets at amortized cost in the
statements of financial position.

For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivalents
comprise accounts with original maturities of three months or less, including cash.
These generally include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which arL
subject to insignfficant risk of changes in value.

Short-term invesfinent includes time deposits with original maturities of more than
three months butless than one year.
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Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross

carrying amount of the financial assets except for those that are subsequently

iaentifiea as credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets at amortized cost,

the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial assets

(after deduction of the loss allowance). The interest earned is recognized in the

statement of profit or loss as part of Finance income.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comyeltcnsioe Income (FVOj)

The Association accounts for financial assets at FVOCI if the assets meet the

following conditions:

. they are held under a business model whose objective is to hold to collect the

associated cash flows and sell ('hold to collect and se11"); and,

. the conkactual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are SPPI on

the principal amount oubtanding.

At initial recognition, the Association can make an irrevocable election (on an

instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate equity inveshnents as at FVOCI;
however, such designation is not permitted if the equif investment is held by the

Association for trading or as mandatorily required to be classified as zuTPL. The

Association has designated equity instruments as at FVOCI on initial application of
PFRS 9.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured al fafu value plus transaction cosb.

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with no deduction for any disposal
costs. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, including the foreign
exchange component, are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of any

effects arising from income taxes, and are reported as part of Revaluation reseryes

account in equrty. lAtrhen the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss

previously recognized in the Revaluation reseryes account is not redassified to profit
or loss but is reclassified directly to Free and unassigned balance account, except for
those debt securities classified as FVOCI wherein cumulative fair value gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross

carrying amount of the financial asseb except for those that are subsequently

identified as credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective

interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial assets (after

deduction of the loss allowance). The interest eamed is recognized in the statement

of profit or loss as part of Finance income.

Any dividends eamed on holding equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss

as part of Miscellaneous under Other operating income account, when the

Associatiort's right to receive dividends is established, it is probable that the

economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Associatioru and, the

amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, unless the dividends clearly
represent recovery of a part of the cost of the investment.

As at December 31., 2018, the Associationls financial assets designated at FVOCI is

discussed in Note 9.
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iii. Financial Assets at Fair Vahrc Through Proft or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than "hold to
collect" or "hold to coliect and sell" are categorized at FVTPL. Further, irrespective
of business model, financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not SPPI are

accounted for at FVTPL. AIso, equity securities are classified as financial assets at

FWPL, unless the Association designates an equity investrnent that is not held for
trading as at FVOCI at initial recognition. The Association s financial assets at
FVTPL include.equity securities which are held for trading purposes or designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized
in profit or loss as part of Finance income in the statements of profit or loss. The fair
values of these financial assets are determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Interest earned on these investrnents is included in the net fair value gains (losses)

on these assets presented as part of Finance Income in the statements of profit or
loss.

As at December 31, 2018, the Association's financial assets designated at FVTPL is
discussed in Note L0.

The Association can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business mocl.el
for managing those financial assets changes. Accordingly, the Association is required to
reclassify financial assets: (i) from amortized cost to FWPL, if the objective of the
business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria are no longer meg and, (ii)
from FVTPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost criteria start to be met and the characteristic of the instrument's
contractual cash flows meet the amortized cost criteria.

A change in the objective of the Association's business model will take effect only at the
beginning of the next reporting period following the change in the business model.

Classification, Measurement and Reclnssifcation of Firmncial Assets in Accardance uith
PAS 39

Financial assets are assigned to different categories by management on initial
recognitiory depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and
their characteristics. Financial assets other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments are classified into flre following categories: financial assets at
FVTPL,loans and receivables, HTM investnents and AFS financial assets.

A more detailed description of the four categories of financial asseb relevant to the
Association as at and for the year ended December 3'1,,2A17 follows:

i. Financinl Assets at FVTPL

This category includes financial assets that are either classifiecl as helcl for tracling or
that meets certain conditions and are designated by the entity to be carried at FVTPL
upon initial recognition. All derivatives fall into this category, except for those
designated and effective as hedging instruments.
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Subsequent to initial recognitiorg financial assets at FVTPL are measured at

fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets

(except derivatives and financial irutruments originally designated as financial

assets at FVTPL) may be reclassified out of fair value through profit or loss category

if they are no longei held for the purpose of being sold or repurchased in the near

term.

As at Decemb er 31.,2017, the Association does not have financial assets designated at

FVTPL.

AFS Financial Assets

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to

this category or do not qualify for inclusion i. *y of the other categories of financial
assets.

Al1 financial assets within this category are subsequently measured at fair value,
except for equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active

market and whose fair value carurot be reliably measured which are measured at
cost, less impairment loss, if any. Gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of any income tax effects, and are reported as part of the

Revaluation reserves account in equity, except for interest and dividend income,

impairment losses and foreign exchange differences on monetary asseb, which are

recognized in profit or loss. Utrhen the asset is disposed of or is determined to be

impaired, that is, when there is a signifi.cant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost, the cumulative gain or loss recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from revaluation reserve to profit or loss and
presented as a reclassification adjustmentwithin other comprehensive income.

Reversal of impairment losses are recognized in other comprehensive income, except
for financial assets that are debt securities which are recognized in profit or loss only
if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized.

As at December 3L, 2017, the Associatiort's AFS financial assets is presented

in Note 10.

IITMlnvestruents

This includes non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

and a fixed date of maturity. Investntents are classified as HTM if the Association

has the positive intention and ability to hold them until maturity. Investnenb
intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. If
the Association were to sell other than an insignificant amount of HTM investntents,
the whole category would be tainted and reclassified to AFS financial assets.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the HTM investrnenb are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any. Impairment
loss, which is the difference between the carrying value 4nd the present value of
estimated {uture cash flows of the investrnent, is recognized when there is objective
evidence that the investrnent has been impaired. Any changes to the carrying
amount of the investrnent including impairment loss, are recognized in profit or
loss.

777,
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The Association currently holds goveffrnent boncls designated into this category in

2A17.

Losns and Receiaables

Loans and receivables are non-cierivative financial assets with fiied or determinable

payments that are not quotecl in an- active market. They arise when the Association

provides money o, ,.*i.", clirectly to a debtor with no intention of trading the

receivables. Includecl in this category are those arising from direct loans to

customers ancl all receivables frorn- customers and other Association' They are

includecl in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than L2 months

after the end of each reporting plriod, which are classified as non-current assets'

The Association's financial assets categorizecl as loans ancl receivables are presented

as Cash ancl cash equivalents, ShJrt-term invesbnents and Loans and other

receivables in the statements of financial position'

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term'

highly liquicl investrnents with original maturities of three months or less' readily

convertible to known amounts of cish and which are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value.

short-term investment inclucles time deposits with original maturities of more than

three months but less than one year.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest methocl, less impairment losses, if any' Any change in their-value is

recognized in profit or loss, .*."pt for increases in fair values of reclassified financial

urr"6 uncler pAS 39 and PFRS 7. Increases in estimates of future cash receipts from

such financial assets shall be recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest

rate from the date of the change in estimate rather than as an adjustrnent to the

carrying amount of the financial asset at the date of the change in estimate'

Impairment loss is providecl when there is objective evidence that flre Association

will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in accordance with the original terms

of the receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the

clifference between the assets' carrying amount and the Present value of estimated

future cash flows.

For investments that are actively traclecl in organizecl financial markets, fair value is

aeiermined by reference to exchar'tge-qrot"c1 market bid prices at the close.of

business on tlie reporting periocl. Foi investrnents where there is no quoted market

price, fair value is c{eterLlnecl by reference to the current market value of another

instrument which is substantially the same or is calculated based on the exPected

cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the investment.
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lntpainnant of Financial Assets

Intpairruent of Financial Assets Under PFRS 9

From Janu ary 1, 2018, the Association assesses its ECL on a forward-looking basis

associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt instruments

measurecl at FVOCI. Recognition of creclit losses is no longer dependent on the

Associatior/s iclentification oI a creclit loss event. Instead, the Association considers a

broacler range of information in assessing credit risk and measuring exqe$e-d credit

losses, including Pdst events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts

that affect coUectaUitity of the future cash flows of the financial assets'

The Association applies the simplified approach in measuring ECL, which uses a

lifetime expectecl losi allowance for all trade and other receivables and contract assets.

These ur" th" expectecl shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for

ciefault at any point during the life of the financial assets. To calculate the ECL, the

Association uses its histoiical experience, extemal indicators and forwardJooking

infortnation to calculate the ECL using a provision matrix. The Association also assesses

impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis as they Possess shared credit risk

chiracteristics, and have been grouped based on the days past due.

For debt instruments measured at FVOCI and at amortized cost, the allowance for credit

losses is basecl on the ECL associated with the probability of default of a financial

insffument in the next L2 months, unless there has been a significant increase in credit

risk since the origination of the financial asset, in such case, a lifetime ECL for a

purchased or originated credit impaired, the allowance for credit losses is based on the

.frur-,g" in the ECL over the life of the asset. The Association recognized a loss allowance

for such losses at each reporting date.

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

. Probability of default - It is an esfimate of likelihood of default over a given time

horizon.

. Loss giaen d.efauU - It is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default occurs at a

givei time. It is based on the difference between the contractural cash flows of a

iinancial instrument clue from a counterparty and those that the Association would

expect to receive, including the realization of any collateral.

. Etyosure at defrult - It represents the gross carrying amount of the financial

instruments subject to the impairment calculation'

Measurement of the ECL is cletermined by a probability-weighted estimate of oedit
losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.
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lnrpairnrcnt af Financial Assets l)nder PAS 39

As at December 3L,2017, the Association's assessed impairment of financial assets as

follows:

i. Assets Carried at Amortized Cost

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually

for financial assets that are indiviciually significant, and individually or collectively

for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that

no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial

asset,'whether significant oI not, it includes the asset in a group of financial asset

with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.

Assets that are indiviclually assessecl for impairment and for which an impairment

loss is or continues to be iecognized ure r,ot includecl in a collective assessment of

impairment.

If there is objective eviclence that an impairment loss on loans or HTM investments

carriecl at amortizecl cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as

the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of

estimatecl future cash flows (exctuding future credit loss that have not been

incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

ii. Assets Cnrried at Cost

If there is objective evidence of impairment for any of the unquoted equity

instruments that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably

measurecl, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and required to be settled by

clelivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, impairment loss is recognized. The

amorr.,i of impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount of flre
financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discourted at the

current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are

not reversed.

iii. Assets Carried at Fair Value

1411ren a decline in ttre fair value of an AFS financial asset has been recognized in
other comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that the asset is

impaired, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition

cosi (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and current fair value, less

any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss -
is reclassified from Revaluation Reserves to profit or loss as a reclassification

adjustnent even though the financial asset has not been derecognized.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss on equity instrumenb are not
reversed through profit or loss. Reversal of impairment losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income, except for financial assets that are debt securities

which are recognized in profit or loss only if the reversal can be objectively related to

an event occuring after the impairment loss was recognized,
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Itenrs of Income and Expmse Related to Finattcial Assets

All income and expenses, including impairment losses, relating to financial assets that are

recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Interest income or Interest expense/

Impiirment losses, Gain on disposal of financial assets, Dividend income and Recoveries

from accounts written-off (presented as part of Other income) in the profit or loss.

Non-compounding interest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from holding
financial assets are recognized in the profit or loss when eamed, regardless of how the

related carrying a:riount of financial assets is measured.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the

financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownersldp have been transferred to another party. If the Association neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Association recognizes its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Association retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a h'ansferred financial asset, the
Association continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial Liabilities

As the accounting for financial liabilities remains largely the same under PFRS 9

compared to PAS 39, the Association's financial liabilities were not impacted by the
adoption of PFRS 9. However, for completeness, the accounting policy is disclosed
below.

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate. The Association determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and
borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.

As at December 3L,2018 and 2017, the Association did not have financial liabilities at
FVTPL or derivative liabilities designated as hedging instruments.

The Association's financial liabilities include accolrnts payable and other liabilities,
liability on individual equity value, basic contingent benefit reserve and clairns payable
on basic contingent benefit. These are recognized when the Association becomes a parq/
to the contractual agreements of the instrument.

Accounts payable and other tiabilities are initially recognizecl at their fair value ancl

subsequently measured at amortized cost, using effective i4terest method for any
maturities beyond one year,less settlement payments.

Liability on individual equity value, basic contingent benefit reserve and claims payable
on basic contingent benefit are recognized as financial liabilities based on the amounts
recommended by an independent actuary.
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A financial liability is derecognizecl when the obligation under the liability is
clischargecl, cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by

another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing

liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is h'eated as a

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the

d.ifference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss in the

statements of comprehensive income.

f. Offsetting Financial Instnmmnts

Financial assets and furancial liabitities are offset and the resulting net amount,

colsiderect as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the statement of
financial position when the Association currentty has legally enforceable right to set off
the recogirized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the

asset ancl settle the iiability simultaneously. The right of set-off must be available at the

end of the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on future event. It must also be

enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of defaulL and in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all
counterparties to the financial instruments.

Prepayments

This account pertains to prepayments controlled by the Association as a result of past

events. They are recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that the future
economic benefits wili flow to the entity and the asset has a cost or value that can be

measured reliably.

Property andEEdpmmt

Land and building and improvements are measured at acquisition or construction cost less

depreciation for building and improvements. As no finite useftil life for land can be

determined, related carrying amount are not depreciated. Ali oflrer property and equipment
are carried at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable cosb of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are

chirgecl to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their

cost and related accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are removed from the

accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in income for the period.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the

assets as follows:

Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Transportation equipment

2-30 years
2-5 years
2-5 years

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the

asset's carrying amount is greater flran its estimated recoverable amount.

The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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An item of property ancl equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation and

impairment lor*s, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on

cterecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and thJ carrying amount of the item) is included in the statements of comprehensive income

in the year the item is derecognized.

hxtestnrent Property

This account includes parcels of land acquirecl in settlement of loans recordect at the lower

of the total ioan expos.re or bicl price at the same time of foreclosure, which should not be

higher than the fair value of the property less costs to sell. Any excess of the loan balance

ov'er the bicl price that is not recoverable from the borrower is included under Other losses

in the statements of comprehensive income. Holding costs subsequent to foreclosure or

acquisition of the properties are charged to operations as incurred.

Other investnent property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital

appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of btrsiness, use in the

procluction or supply of goods or services or for administrative PurPoses. This investment
property is initially recognized at cost, which includes acquisition price plus directly

attributable cost incurred such as legal fees, transfer taxes and other transaction impairment
losses, if any. Investnnent property is recognized using cost model. Depreciation is

computed on the straight-line basis over ssthe estimated useful life of 5 years

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from

use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

lmp airmant of N on-financial Assets

The Associationls property and equipment and investrnent property are subject to
impairment testing. All other individual assets are tested for impairment whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate flrat the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which

there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are

tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level'

Impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generating unit's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amotrnt. The recoverable amount is the higher of ie
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management

estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the

suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data

used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Association's latest

approved budget, adjustecl as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements.

Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect
management's assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk
factors.

A11 assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and flre carrying amount of the, asset is adjusted to the

recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.
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P r oai si ons an d C onting enci e s

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the

outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or

constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present

obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period,

inclucling the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Mrere there are

a number of similar obligations, the likelilrood that an outflow will be required in settlement

is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money

is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a Pretax rate

that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to flre obligation. The increase in tl're
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be

measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly, possible
inflows of economic benefits to the Association that do not yet meet the recognition criteria
of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial
statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Association can be virtually
certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate
asset not exceeding the amount of flre related provision.

Ratenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized to flre extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Association and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

. Interest - revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective
yield on the asset.

Interest collected in advance (unearned interest income) is amortized to earnings using
the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the relevant
period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futrre cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a

shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Association estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not
consider future creclit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points received
between parties to the contract flrat are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
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Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a

result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used

to discount the future cash flows for the purPose of measuring the

loss.

impairment

For other income arises in the performance of Association's services, the Association follows

a s-step process to determine whether to recognize revenue:

1. Identifying flre contract with a customer
2. Identifying the performance obligations
3. Determining the transaction price
4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
5. Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

For Step 1 to be achieved, the following five gating criteria must be present:

i. the parties to the contract have approved the contract either in writing, orally or in
accordance with other customary business practices;

ii. each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be

identified;
iii. the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be

identified;
iv. the contract has commercial substance (i.e., the risk, timing or amount of the future cash

flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and,
v. collection of the consideration in exchange of the goods and services is probable.

Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Association
satisfies performance obligations by h'ansferring the promised goods or services to its
customers.

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following
criteria, in which case it is satisfied over time:

i. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the

Associatiorls performance as the Association performs;
ii. the Association's performe[lce creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as

the asset is created or enhanced; and,
iii. the Association's perfolmance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the

Association and the entity has an enJorceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

The Association recognizes contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of
unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these amounts as other liabilities in the
statement of financial position. Similarly, if the Association satisfies a performance
obligation before it receives the consideration, the Association recognizes either a contract
asset or a receivable in its statement of financial position, depending on whether something
other than the passage of time is required before the consideration is due.

Income that were recognized under the above criteria are cliscussed as follows:

. General aud insurance funds and memhership fees - revenue is recognizect monthly as they
become due from members.

. Sertice clurges and fees - revenue is amortized and recognized using the effective interest
rate method over the term of the loan.
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. Other contibutions - revenue is recognizecl upon receipt of contribution'

. Miscellaneous - revenue is recognized as they are earned'

ln 2017 and prior periods, the Association recognizeci revenues based on the provisions of

pAS 1g which is to the extent that such .errenues and the related costs incurred or to be

incurred can be measurecl reliably and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow

to the Association. Where the ouicome of the contract caru:ot be measured reliably, revenue

is recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable'

Expenses are recognizecl when it is probable that decrease in future economic benefits

relatecl to a decrease in an asset or an increase in liability has occurred and the decrease in

economic benefits can be measured reliably. Revenues and expenses that relate to the same

transaction or other event are recognized simultaneously'

Cost and operating expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of services or

at the date they are incurred'

Employee Benefits

The Association provicles short term benefits and post-employment benefits to employees

through a defined benefit plan, as well as various defined contribution plans.

a. Short-term Benefits

Wages, salaries and bonuses are recognized as an exPense in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees. Short term accumtrlating compensated

absences such as paid arurual leave ale recognized when services are rendered by

employees that increase their entitlement to future comPensated absences. Short term

1,o.,-uC.r-ulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognized when the

absences occur.

b. Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan tl-rat defines an amount of post-

employment benefii that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on

onJ or-*ore factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for any

benefitg from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the Association, even if
plan asiets for funcling the defined benefit have been acquired. PIan assets may include

assets specially clesignated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance

policies. The Associition's ctefined benefit post-employment plans covers all regular

fuIl-time employees.

The liability recognized in the statemenb of financial position for defined benefit

pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the end of
-the 

reporting period tess the fair value of plan assets. The DBO is calculated annually by

inclepencleni actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the

DBO is cletermined by discounting the estimated fufures cash outflows using interest

rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the

benefits *iU fi paid ancl that have terms to maturity approximhting to the terms of the

related pension liability.
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience

adjustments anci changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets

(excluding amount incluaed in net interest) are reflected immediately in the statement of

financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in

the period in which they arise. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at

the ieginning of the periocl, taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit

Iiabilit! or asiet cluring the periocl is a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net

interesi is reported as part of Finance costs or Finance income account in the statement

of comprehensive income.

past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a

plan amendment.

c, Defned Contribution Plan

A definecl contribution plan under which the Association pays fixed contributions into

an indepenclent entity such as Social Security System (SSS), Philhealth and Pag-ibig. The

Association has no llgal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after

payment of the fixed iontribution. The contributions recognized in respect of defined

contribution plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be

recognized if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included in current

iiabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short-term nature.

Leases

The Association accounts for its leases as follows:

a. Assaciation as Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Association substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownersftip of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are

recognizecl as expense in the statements of comprehensive revenues on a straight-line

basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are

expensed as incurred.

b. Association as Lessor

Leases yhich do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of

ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating

leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Association determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on the

substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement

conveys a right to use the asset.

IncomeTaxes

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal

authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at

the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using to the tax rates and tax laws

applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.

All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense

in the profit or loss.
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Related Party Transactions and Relationship

Related parq/ transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the

Association and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or

exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one

or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the

Association; (b) associates; and, (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in
the voting power of the Association that gives them significant influence over the

Association and close members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance

of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

Fund Balance

Assigned fund balance represents that amount set-aside based on certain percentage from
net profit during the year.

Free and unassigned fund balance includes all current and prior period results as disclosed
in the statements of comprehensive income.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss includes all the accumulated fair value changes in
defined benefit obligation.

Eomts After the htil of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Association's
financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in flre
financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed
when material to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Association's financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and reiated notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
ultimately differ flom these estimates.
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Critical Managmtmt fudgments in Applying Accotmting Policies

In the process of applying the Association's accounting policies, management has made the

following juclgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most

sighificant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determination of ECL on Loans and othet receiaables QAL8)

The Association uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade and other receivables

anc{ contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of

various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product

type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is based on the Association's historical observed default rates. The

Association s management intends to regularly calibrate (i.e., on an arurual basis) the

matrix to consider the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information
(i.e., forecast economic conditions).

Eualuatiotr of Business Model Applied in Managing Finnncial lnstruments (2018)

Upon adoption of PFRS 9, the Association developed business models which reflect how
it manages its porffolio of financial inst'uments. The Association's business models
need not be assessed at entity level or as a whole but shall be applied at the level of a
portfolio of financial instruments (i.e., group of financial instruments that are managed
together by the Association) and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis (i.e., not
based on intention or specific cl'raracteristics of individual financial instrument).

In determining the classification of a financial instrument under PFRS 9, the Association
evaluates in which business model a financial instrument or a portfolio of financial
instruments belong to taking into consideration the objectives of each business model
establisl'red by the Association (e.g., held-for-trading, generating accrual income, direct
matching to a specific liability) as those relate to the Association's investrnent and
trading sh'ategies.

Testing the Cash Fluus Characteistics of Financial Assets and Continuing Eaaluation of the

Business Model QAfi)

Ir determining the classification of financial asseb under PFRS 9, the Association
assesses whether the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal oubtanding, with interest representing time
value of money and credit risk associated with tl're principal amount outstanding. The
assessment as to whether the cash flows meet the test is made in the currency in which
the financial asset is denominatecl. Any other contractual term that changes tl're timing
or amount of cash flows (unless it is a variable interest rate that represents time value of
money and credit risk) does not meet the amortized cost criteria. In cases where the
relationship between the passage of time and the interest rate of the financial instrument
may be imperfect known as modified tirne value of money, the Association assesses the
modified time value of money feature to determine whether the financial instrument
still meeb the SPPI criterion. The objective of the assessment is to determine how
clifferent the undiscountec{ contractual cash flows cotrld be frori"r the uncliscountecl cash
flows that would arise if the time value of money element was not rnodified (the
benchmark cash flows).

b.
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If the resulting difference is significant, the SPPI criterion is not met. In view of this, the

Association consiclers the effect of the modified time value of money element in each

reporting period and cumulatively over the life of the financial instrument.

In acldition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent sale is made out of a

portfolio of financial asiets carried at amortized cost, an entity should *s-ess whether

ir,.l 1-,o* such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows.

In making this judgment the Association considers certain circumstances documented

in its business moclel manual to assess that an increase in flre frequency or value of sales

of financial instruments in a particular period is not necessary inconsistent with a held-

to-collect business model if the Association can explain the reasons for those sales and

why those sales do not reflect a change in the Association's objective for tl're business

model.

Classifuing Financial Assets ns HTM Intteshnent (2017)

In classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and

fixecl maturity as FITM investment prior to the adoption of PFRS 9, flre Association

evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investrnents to maturity. If the

Association fails to keep these investrnents as maturity other than for specific

circumstances under the accounting policy as discussed in Note 2, it will be required to

reclassify the entire class of HTM investment to AFS securities.

In2017, the Association did not dispose any of its I-ilM investments prior to maturity of
the investments. Consequently, the Association reclassified all of its HTM investments
with amortized cost of P22,0A0,000 to Investment securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income in relation to the adoption of PFRS 9 (see Note 9).

The Association classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset

is quoted or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial
asset is quoted in an active market is tl're determination on whether quoted prices are

readily and regularly available, and wlrether those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market h'ansactions on an arm's length basis.

Eualuating lrupainuad of AFS Fhuncial Assets (201'7)

The determination when an investrnent is other-than-temporarily impaired requires

significant judgment. In making this judgment with respect to the Association's
outstanding AFS financial assets as at December 31, 2017, the Association has evaluated,
among other factors, the duration and extent to wl'rich the fair value of an investrnent is

less than its cost, and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the

investee, inctuding factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flows. For investments issued by
counterparty under bankruptcy, the Association deter:rnines permanent impairment
based on the price of the most recent transaction and on latest indications obtained fi'om
reputable counterparties (which regularly quotes prices for distressed securities) since

current bid prices are no longer available.

Based on management evaluation of information and circumstances affecting the
Associatiort's AFS financial assets as at December 3L, 20'17, lhe Association has not
recognized any impairment loss.

e.
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f. Distinctian Befineen Inuestment Properties and Owner-managed Properties

The Association determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In

making its judgment, flre Association considers whether the property generates cash

flows 
'iargeiy 

irra"p"rrdent of the other asseb held by an entity. Owner-occupied

propertieJ generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the proPerty but also to

other assets used in the production or supply Process'

g. Distinctionbefioern Operating and Finance Lenses

The Association has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was

exercisec{ by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating or a

finance lease by tolnng at the transfer or retention of significant risk and rewards of

ownership of ihe properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right
judgmenf will result in either overstaternent or understatement of assets and liabilities.'

h. Recognition of Prooisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed in

Note iabove and disclosures on relevant provisions and contingencies are presented in
Note 2_3,:

Ke11 Sources of Esthnation Uncettainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncerhint), at the end of tlre reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year:

a. Estimation of Allwuance for ECL (2018)

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortized cost and at

FVOCI is an area that requires the use of significant assumptions about the future

economic conditions and credit behavior (e,g., likelihood of customers defaulting and

the resulting losses).

The carrying value of loans and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Notey'.

b. Estimation of Impairment of Finnncinl Assets (HTM lntseshnents and Loans antl Other

Receioables) Q017)

The Association reviews its HTM invesfinents and Loans and other receivables

portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an

impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Association makes judgments

as to \Mhether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease

in the estimated future cash flows from the financial asset or a portfolio of similar
financial assets. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has

been an adverse change in the payment stafus of borrowers or issuers in a grouP/ or

national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaultd on assets in the group.
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Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the pordolio
when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

The tohl impairment losses on financial assets recognized in profit or loss is presented
in Note 10.

F air V alue Measuremmt of Financial lnstrumettts

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
iruitruments wh-ere active market quotes are not available. This requires management to
develop estimates and assumptions based on market inputs, using observable data that
market participants would use in pricing the instrument.

Where sudr data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated fair
values of financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.

Fair value losses of.W,981,,777 in 2018 andB,982,595 in 2A77 on financial assets at fair
value tfuough profit and loss previously classified as available-for-sale financial asseb
in 2017 was reported in the statement of comprehensive income (see Note 9),

The fair values of the Associationis financiatr instruments are disclosed in Note 25.

Estimation of Useful Liaes of Property and Equipm*tt and Inoestment Property Except Land.

The Association estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the
period over which the asseb are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful
lives of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of properiy and equipment are ana\zed in Note 11. Based on
management's assessment as at December 3L, 2078 artd 2077, there is no change in
estimated useful lives of those assets during those years. Actual resulb, however, may
vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

lmpairment of Non-financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or
a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Estimation uncertainty relates to
assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount
rate. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair
values reflected in the financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values
and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverge effect on the results of
operations.

In 2018 andZULT, there were no impairment losses recognized on non-financial assets.
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f. Valuation of Post-enryloyment Defined Benefit Obligation

The cletermination of the Association's obligation and cost of Post-emPloyment is

clepenclent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such

amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note Zl.and include, among others,

cliscount rates, expecteci rate of retum on plan assets/and expected rate Jf salary

increases. In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions are

accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the

recognized expense and lecorded obligation in such future periods.

The arnounts of post-employment benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the

movements in the estimated present value of post-employment benefit as well as the

significant assumptions used in estimating such obligation are presented

in Note 21,

CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents hrclucle the following components as at December 31:

Cash in banks
Short-term placements

2018 2017

P 84,676,555 P 73,271.,005

115,279577 136,497,419

6.

P___1ee2E5.072 P___20ef,68.424

Cash in banks generally eam interest at rates based on daily banks deposit rates. Short-term
placements are made for varying periods between 30 to 90 days and earn effective annual
interest ranging from 1.50% to 5.44% in 2018 and 1.00% to 4.00o/o in2077.

The interest eamed on cash in banks and short-term placements amounted to P889,074 in
2018 and P'1.,847,711. n 2017 and are presented as part of Interest on investrnent securities
and deposits with banks in the statements of comprehensive income.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The short-term investrnents amounted to P81,248,155-in 20L8 and re0,988,917in2017. These

investrnenb have a term for more than three months but less than one-year term and bear an

annual effective interest ranging from L.75o/o to 5.6250/o in 2018 and '1..75o/o to 4.29Yo

ir.2017.

Tlre interest eamed on short-term investrnents amounted to P5,408,997 in 2018 and
Y7,574,858 in 2017 and are presented as part of Interest on invesknent securities and
deposits with banks in the statements of comprehensive income.
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LOANS AND OTHER RECEryABLES

The cletails of this account are shown below:

Consumption loans
Accrued income
Accounts receivable

Allowance for imPairment losses

Current
Non-current

20L8 2017

P g75,170,0L1 P 342,394,083

34,095,300 26,175,919
't-,928,230 12,889,183

411,,193,541' 381,,459,185,',

( 6,s47,206) ( 6.487,884)

P---404-846J35 P---AAilJ3o1.'

--I

-
d

-
d

--I

ln the statements of financial Position, these are Presented as follows:

2018 2017

P 222,805,766 P 227,223,792

181,840,569 1,47,747.509

E- 4,6&3fi- y--uail7Aw

The Association grants loans ranging from P1,000 to P10,000,000 and P1'000 to P14'000'000

in 2018 a,.d.Z1lT,respectively, *Ithint.ral effective interest rates ranging from 5o/o lo16%

ir, Uort't years. The credit terrns on loans ranging from 3 months to L0 years'

The interest receivecl on loans ancl other receivables amounted to P3B'872'048 iI:I 2018 and

P3L,g84,881-. in 2017 and, are presentecl as Interest on loaus in the statements of

comprehefisive income.

Accounts receivable pertains to unremittecl collections and receivable to borrowers who

reacquired their previously foreclosed properties'

The Association collects service fees at 3o/o of loans granted' service fees amounted to

P7,477,313..and,P7,168,850 in 2018 ancl 2017, respectively, and presented as Seruices charges

and fees in the statemen6 of comprehensive income'

Past clue lodns amountec{ to P22,g6BA2g in 2018 and P7,886,062:[.t2017'

The movements in flre allowance for impairment IOSSes in loans receivables are as follows:

2018 2017

P 5,487,884 P 5,013,32L

5,128,721 3,300,000

( 5,A6e,3ee) ( 1"825,437)

E--aEgAh, P-----6-'487-'8U'

Balance at beginning of Year
Impairment losses during tl're year (see Note L7)

Reversal

Balance at end of Year
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An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances

follows:

Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total

Gross carrying amounts
as at ]anuarY 1,2018

New assets originated
Assets derecognized or PrePaid

Gross carrying amounts
as Decenrber 31, 20L8

ECL allowance as atlanuarY 1,2018
Under PFRS 9

Provision for of credit losses

Reversal

ECL allowance as at Decemb$ 31, 2018

under PFRS 9

Mutual funds
Quoted equity securities

P 394,508,021 P 1.398,178 P 6,487,8U P 342,394,083

291,145,082 14,570,251 59,322 245,n4,655

L n2,995,727) -------- -------- ( 212.998.727)

E--i52-65$75 v--J5CSg'429 P.-----589,296 v--i75il9e7

P 6,295A65
4,n7,760( s.059.399)

34,715
355,574

_--:-

P MA53,200
40,86L,396

6A87,8U
5,728,72L

/ s.059399)

P 36,8'1.6,509

37,372,963

20,749,199
5,254.464

158304
L,M7

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

This account includes investment securities amounting to Ii3,000,000 in 2018. This 182-day

treasury bill bears interest of 4.018% in 2018. The interest earned on this financial assets

amounied lo Y7,674 in 2018 and are presented as part of Interest on inveshent securities

and deposits with banks in the statements of comprehensive income.

ETNANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This account comprises of investrnent securities as follows:

2018 2017

9.

Equity securities under Lrvestnent Management

Agreement (IMA) 40A77,351

Unit investnent trust fund (UITF) 5'404,384

E_JilA9SAn y___99E9j,BE

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of these financial assets at FVTPL is as follows:

2018 2017

P 99,593X35 P 79,43'1.,996

49,083135 43,865,712

( 13,501,230) ( 22,536,601)
( 3,978,7091 ( 1.,1.67,972)

E__7il1%33L P----99J93J35

Balance at begiruring of Year
Additions
Disposals
Fair value losses - net

Balance at end of year

In 2018 and,2017, the Association recognized gain from disposal of financial assets at FVT?L

amounting to P2,096,938 and P2,568,896, respectively. These are presented as Income from

sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the statements of comprehensive

income.
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TIre acquisition cost and accumulated fair value gain or loss of these financial assets at
FWPL are presented below:

Accumulated
Acquisition Fair Market Fair Value

Cost Value Gain or Loss

December 37,2018
Mutual funds
Quoted equity securities
Eguity securities under IMA
UITF

December31,2017
Mutualfunds
Quoted equity securities
Equig seo:rities under IMA
UITF

Corporate bonds
10-Year Treasury Bonds
2O-Year Treasury Bonds

Govemmentbonds
3-Year Treasury Bonds

Unquoted equity securities

P 45,000,000 P
64,657,699
42,751,,049

P 31000,000 P
54,881,M7
20,725,000

44453200 P
40,867p96
40,477357

36,816,5A9 (P
37,372,953
20,149,199 (

5,000,000 5r4a4384 ( 404.384)

P___i156t!0&749 P___i191J9fi!31 E-__E6UN_

54CI800

23,796,303
'1,,673,698

L816,509)
17,508,484

24,199)
5,000.000 51254,464 ( 254,464)

E___77sNSg. B__ee,5gu35 E____ j15413J12

Quoted equity securities consist of investments in companies listed in the Philippine Stock
Exchange. The fair values of listed equity securities have been determined directly by
reference to published prices in active markeb.

Equity securities under ftrvestment Management Agreement (IMA) consists of bonds, note
placements and shares of listed companies managed by several local banks.

The fair values of mutual funds, UffF, and equity securities under IMA have been
determined directly by reference to published pricei inactive markets.

In2017, these equity securities were classified under AFS financial assets.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSTVE
INCOME

This account consists of the following treasury bonds and unquoted securities:

2018 2017

P 10,000,000

2000,000
P 10,000,000

200o000

10,000,000 5,000,000
500,000 500,000

E_g-500.090 P_2a500.000

Treasury bonds bear interest ranging from 3.25% to 7.?5o/o in 2mB and 2077. These
investrnents were set aside as guarantee fund reserves in compliance with the Associatior/s
registoation as mutual benefit association.
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The interest earned on these investnents amounted to P1,00&375 in 2018 and F749,000 in
2A77 andare presented as part of I:rterest on investnrent securities and deposits with banks

in the shtements of comprehensive income.

Unquoted equity security consists of investrnent in a non-stock association.

The fair values of unquoted equity securities are neither readily available nor is there an

altemative basis for deriving a reasonable valuation as of reporting date. Management

believes that no impairment should be recognized with this investnent.

In2017, treasury bonds were classified under HTM investrnents while unquoted equity
securities was classified under AFS financial assets.

T1. PROPERTY AND EQIIIPMENT

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation at the beginning and end of 2018

and 2077 are shown below:

Building Furniture
and Transportation Fixturee and

-Improvementg Equipment Equipment Land Total

December 31,2018
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

December 31,2017
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Jaruary7,2017
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

P L43fl,n9 P 8,007,64 P 6,872,318 P 6,182;137 P $3n,855
L t.629.63$ L 637s23) ( 6.0sL747) __- (, 17.W7.608)

9.____6,$e,AL E-_jt69?&18 L_E19^1ZL E__5A82;$2 ?_L5,g6AZ

P 12,A6,n5 P 3,710930 P 3,148,704 P 6,182137 P 25A68,542

L 5ffit96) ( 7i43.7e8) L 2ffi.184) ( e222X'78)

P_1,192il9 P_23fr,132 P___5S516 E__LLWAil. P_16245,2&

P 72402955 P 4013,630 P 2,574284 P 6;184737 P 2j,7n,046
( 4.8%.96D ( 2.105.006) ( 2.1,66.743) 

-_ 

( 91,6sz0)

P-_JA98E4 P_--7.eM,6U P---rt0zl41 P--.j.[$UA Y-].6MA96

( 1585.794)

v_Laezs,4z

P 76,0U1296
't",864,636

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property and equipment at the beginning and
endof 2018 atd2077 isshownbelow:

Building Furniture
and Transportation Fixtures and

Improvements Equipment Eqripurent Land Total

Balance at fanuary 1, 201& net of
accumulated depreciation P 7,102,979 P 2367J32 P 59386 P 6,18L137 P 1,6,2N,764

Additions 776,231 - 776,277

Deprcciation charge
for the year (see Note 75) ( 420,838) | . 674nq (. 4W,n4 

-j-Balance at December 31, 201& net
ofaccumulateddepreciation P---3,@2147 E--:L692iDg E--812lZt E-6,AZLY

Balance at |anu ary 1, frL7, net ol
accirmulated depreciation P 7,5A8,994 P 7,908,624 P 407,il7 P 6;182,737

Additions 23,8N 7,266,4@ 574A1,6

Depreciation charge
fortheyear(seeNoteT') ( 429.83$ ( 807.892) ( 388.441) ___:_ ( 7.626168\

Balance at December 31, 2012 net
ofaccunulateddepreciation P-ZLA,Y9 y*2e67&2 P__-ESLSL6 P_5A&aL?Z Pf624jl&
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As at December 31, 2018, and 2A17, tt.re management believes that there is no indication of
impairment and that the carrying value of the property and equipment can be recovered

through use in oPerations.

hr addition, there were no property and equipment pledge as security or collateral for

liabilities for both years.

!2. INVESTMENTPROPERTY

The Associatiorfs investment property pertains to the portion of the land and land

improvements held for sale and lease. These also include real and other properties acquired

in satisfaction of unsettled debts. The Association currently holds these acquired assets for
puposes of capital appreciation and continues to value its properties using the cost model.

The gross carrying amounts and the accumulated depreciation of investment property are

shown below:

December 37,2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

December 3L,2077
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

January 1.,2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Land
Land Improvements Total

P 90,n0300 P u1,,782 P 97,772,082

:(54,480)(il.480)

E__99,A9A99 P______?81,W E_greil,foz

P 92,749,953 P 34'1,,782 P 93,09't,735

-_ 

(_____tAM) ( 54.480)

p.__yzzA9,9[9 E_____2W/,3U y__33,W,25s

P 70Ap19,333 P 341.,782 P 100,661,775

.-(40'860)(4Q,g6q)

Pi100"u19"?3,? E__-309J22 Lrc0.620455

The reconciliations of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2018 and 2017, of
inveshent property, are shown below:

Land
Land Improvements Total

Balance at January 7, 2018,
netofaccumulateddepreciation P 92,749,953
.Adjustnrents ( 435,913)

Disposal ( 7,54A.74A)

P 287,302 P 93,037,255
( 435,913)
( 7,s43,740)

y__y!,9il,6e
Balance at December 31", 2018,

net of accumulated depreciation Y--Wil0,W. y----W,302
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Land ImProvements Total

Balance at JanuarY']', 2077,

net of accumulated dePreciation
Adjushents
Depreciation charge for the Year

P 300,922 P7A0,62A'255

- ( 7,569,380)

( 73,620) (. 73,620)

P_____WZ,NZ y__%,MZ,WS

2018 2017

P 100819833
( 7,569,380)

>

The Association recognized gain on sale of investnent property amounting P2,910378 nr

201g and is presentei * pui of Other income under miscellaneous in the statements of

comprehensive income.

The Association's investrnent property includes real and other Properties acquired in

satisfaction of unsettled debts. The Association currently holds these acquired assets for

p*por"r of capital appreciation and continues to value its properties using tlre cost model.

The fuir value information of the investment property as at December 3L, 2018 and 2017

cannot be deterrrined reliabty primarily because comparable market transactions were

infrequent and alternative reliable estimates of fuir value based on discounted cash flow

projections were not available as at the financial reporting date'

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

Balance at December 37,2077,
net of accumulated depreciation P-W49,9fi

Current:
Accounts payable
Due to govemment agencies

Accrued expenses

Non-Current
Advance deposit

369495 33,378

E---AXE&U. P---LZ'gil,W

g-----eaa P---J[LJdJ.

P 9,844,0a4
508"508

P 12,352,079
546,791
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74. LIABILITY ON INDTVIDUAL EQUITY VALUE

This account pertains to legal policy reserve which represents the amount set-up by the

Association to cover futuie benefit paymenb to members based on the amounts

recommend.ed by an independent actuary accredited by the [rsurance Commission dated

April 29, 2079 and Apt tl 27, 201 8, resp ectively.

The movement of liabihty on individual equity value is presented below:

Balance atbeginning of Year
Collections from equity participation

during the year

Balance at end of year

Insurance fund collateral
Multiply by 5Ao/,

The movements of this account are as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Additional reserves

Balance at end of year

2A18 2017

P 2335,M8 P 1.,965,723

50o/o 50%

E--JA-flXZ! P-----9u862

2018 2017

P 982,862 P 852tr18
184,862 130,7M

P____JMXZ4 y___enfi@

2018

P 601,J:99,316

76123,603

P 677.322.9L9

20\7

P 522,522,334

78,676,982

P--nap9316

1.5. BASIC CONTINGENT BENEFIT RESERVE

T?ris account represents the amount set-up by the Association as insurance premium
reserves based on 50% of the total insurance collected from the members to cover any

insurance claim by the members.

The account is broken down as follows:

16. CLAIMS PAYABLE ON BASIC CONTINGENT BENEFIT

This represents benefit claims on membership certificates filed or reported

Association but not yet paid amounting to PL,730,000 and P1,835,000

December 37, 2078 and 2017, respectively.

to the
as at
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77. EXPENSES AND OTHER INCOME

Expmses

This account is consists of the following:

Salaries, wages and emPloYees
benefits (see Note 21')

lnsurance claims
Impairment losses (see Note 7)

Transportation and travel
Depreciation (see Notes 1L and 12)

Meetings and conferences
Stationery and office suPPlies

Administrative exPenses

Utilities
Taxes and license s (see Note 28)

Repairs and maintenance
Communication
Professional fees

Contractors fees
Commission
Ivliscellaneous

Operating expenses
Benefit expenses

Other Income

This account consists of the following:

Gain on sale of investrnent property
Rental income (see Note 23)

Penalty income
Gain on sale of proPerty

and equipment (seeNote 10)

Miscellaneous

2018 2017

P L5278,969 P
8155,000
5,728,72L
3,685,U6
t,585,794
LA82,96L
7,324,592
L,247,777

607,378
521,308
243,080
272,723
795,486
143,783

93,994

17,945,542
7A20,000
3p00,000
1_,835,424

L,639,788
2,719,732

1J.83,273
7,035,700

51.6,549

319,779
362,892
242,999
393,500
252200
129,297

These expenses are classified in the statements of comprehensive income as follows:

7,237,699 940,567

E--r11198-68 Y--3!,U3U

2078 2017

P 33,043,605 P 26,817342
8,455,000 7,420,000

E---ALA9Bfi0L P---i4eru42

2018

P 2,9L0,378
L,975,508

648"558

4136,037

E---3J5919.

2017

P
2,708,397

568,704

218,000

L,540,231,

P____5.035332
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18. MEMBERS'CONTRIBUTIONS

The Association collecb monthly contributions from members ranging from PL00 to P20,000

d.epending on the mode of payments and insurance cover whidr forrns part of general fund
and insurance fund. Ttre general fund amounted toYL3,602,734 and TrL4,663,020 in 2018 and

2017, rcspectively, while insurance fund amounted to f25,637,692 andP?2,804,068 in 20L8

and 2017, respectively. These funds were presented in the statements of comprehensive

income.

Members can only withdraw the contributed equity upon termination of membership in the

Association. A portion of members' equity is hansferred to general fund when members fail
to remit their monthly loan contributions. Members whose equlty is less than the members'

outstanding loan balance are reclassified as non-members. Total conkibutions amounted to
17166,777,862 and P1.47118,378 in 2018 and2017, respectively.

Membership fues are recorded as revenues and are shown as Membership fees in the
statements of comprehensive income. Membership fees amounted to Y1,194300 and
P924A00 in 2018 and 2077, respectively.

As af December 91., 2018, and 2017, the Association has a total of 148,980 and 128,61,4

members, respectively.

79, FUND BALANCE

AssignedFund Balance

This account is composed of the following:

The fund assigned for guaranty fund pertains to the portion of the fund balance set aside for
guaranty fund.

Fund assif'ned for members' benefits were assigned for the following accounts:

Guaranty fund
Funds assigned for members' benefits

Funds for incremental benefit for individual equrty value
Funds assigned for education and training
Funds assigned for other membels benefit
Funds assigned for community development

20L8 2017

P 38,000,000 P 38,000,000
2.000.000 2.000.000

P 40.000.000 P 40.000.000

P 500,000
500,000
50o000
500,000

P 2.000.000

Acatmulated Othq Comprehmsioe Loss

This. account pertains to loss on remeasurements of retirement bEnefit obligation in 2018.

Revaluation of AFS financial assets n2077 (classify under Financial assets at FVTPL in 2018)

was adjusted to the beginning balance of Free and unassigned surplus in adoption of PFRS

9. Movement of this account is as follow:



December 31,2018
Balance at beginning of year
Effect of adoption of PFRS 9

Transfer to free and
' unassigned fund balance

Balance at end ofyear

December 31, 2017
Balance at beginning of year
Fair value loss on

disposal during the year
Revaluation during the year

Balance at end ofyear

- J/ -

Revaluation of AFS

Financial Assets

(P 75A73,372)

15,473312

L-____:-

(P 74,245,U0)

L8]4,58
( 3,9825es)

re-**__15r13312)

(P 7,747,ffin

(!________z,az,e91

(P 6,207174)

( 940.ffi3\

ru

(P 22,567,149)

15,473,312

(P 7.78t.837\

(P nAs\s74)

28146?5( 4.9%.258\

e__*__u,5fle,49)

Remeasurements

of Retiremmt
benefitobligation Total

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Association's related parties include the Associationls employees, directors, officers,
stockholders and related interest (DOSRI) and key management personnel.

The summary of the Associationls transactions and outsanding balances urith the related
pardes follows:

2fi7

Key management personnel
Compensation P-----5.1,L90 E----------:-- Y--3,611L72 P----:--

Loans and Receioables with Related Parties

In the ordinary coluse of business, the Association has loans and other transactions with its
members, induding officers and employees of the Association (hereinafur referred to as

related parties). Under the Associatiort's policy, these loans and other transactions are made
substantially on the same terms as with other members.

The movement of these loans to related parties is presented below:

20L8 2017

DOSRI
Loans and interest

Balance atbeginning of year
Releases during the year
Collections during the year

Balance at end of year

Amount of Outstandlng Amount of
Transactions Balance Transactions

E_LEU,gt0) E_MAU P____675,0U

Outstanding Terms and
Balance Condition

P 3fr29.210 Interest bearine
ranging5% to
76o/, payable
in 3 years,
unsecure4 no
impairmmt loss

P 3,A:9,274 P 2p54,259
u76,577

{ 25M.945 ( s01*666)

E___--AMM y_-iAE270
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Key M an ag emmt C omp ms ati o n

The compensation of key management is broken down as follows:

r lrn{lalrtrtrntr[!nttr trr

20L8 2017

B_____5J82040 P___6233.391

Key management includes general manager and higher positions.

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFTTS

Salaries and Employee Bmefit Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are presented below:

2018 2017

Salaries and wages
Retirement benefits

Salaries and wages
Employees welfare and benefits
Retirement costs
Social security costs

P 53-87,M0

P 8,629,756 P
4,569,979
L,457,34L

P 5,707,039
'J.,076.352

6,715,294
2,806,555
L,gg5,g38

628,484 527,855

E-__bE82S9 P____U,9A5,542

Retir em mt B m efit Oblig ation

a. Characteristics of the Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Association does not have yet a tax-qualified, non-conkibutory retirement plan as at
December 3'1., 2018 and 2017 .

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of 5 years of credited service. The plan
also provides for an early retirement at age 50 with a minimum of 5 years of credited
service and late retirement after age 60, both subject to the approval of the Association's
BOD. Normal retirement benefit is an amount equivalent to 150% of the final monthly
covered compensation (average monthly basic salary during the last L2 months of
credited service) for every year of credited service.

tt. Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the
amount of contributions. All amounts presented tn 2017 are based on the actuarial
valuation report obtained from an independent actuary on February 19,2018. As at
December 3L,2018, actuarial valuation report is not available and there were no material
changes on the last year's assumptions used by the management.



-39 -

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation recognized in the shtements of financial
position are as follows:

Present value of the obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Retirement benefit obligation

Balance atbeginning of year
Current service cost
trterest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial loss

Balance at end of year

Balance at beginning of year
Contributions
Acfual retum
Benefits paid

Balance at end of year

Cash and cash equivalents
Retirement loan to employees

The fuir values of the above equity
quoted market prices in active
value hierarchy).

2018 2017

P L1,279,978 P 9,828,637

7,990X24 7,990,124

P 73.270.702 P 11..818.761_

and debt securities are determined based on the
markets (classified as Level 1 of the fair

The movementsin the present value of the retirement benefit obligation recognized in
the books are as follows:

2m8

P 79,89728
( 73,270X02)

P 6.627.727

2018

P 18,M5,882
L,213,302

2,38,037

2018

P 11,818;767
7457,341

2077

P 78,445,882
( 77.818.761\

P 6.527.121.

2017

P 15,688,063
7,657,80'J.

814,994
( 131,200)

41"6.224

P 18.M5.882

2017

P 10,M5,8A1
'1.45'1,64'1.

52,519
(_______13:1288')

P 19.897.223

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below:

P 73.270.102 P 11,.818.767

The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period by
category and risk draracteristics is shownbelow:

Plan assets do not compromise any of the Associatior(s own financial instruments or
any of its asseb occupied arrd/ w used in its operations.
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The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive

income in respect of the retirement benefit obligation afe as follows:

Current service and interest cost is allocated and presented as part of operating exPenses

in the satement of profit or loss.

h determining ttrc amounb of the retirement benefit obligatiory the following
significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2018 2017

Reported in profit or loss:

Current service costs
Interest costs

Rqorted in other camprehensioe income-

Actuarial loss

Discount rates
Expected rate of salary increases

2m8 2077

P 7A5L,34L P 7,657,80'1.

- _ 238,Q37

P___JAlLsAr P__ j1,895,838

P_______- - 

- 

(E--3CI663)

5.M
7o/o

5.44Yo
7%

Assumptions regarding mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

The average age of the employees b 37.29 years in 2018 and 2tL7, wliTe the average

years of service is 8.35 in 2018 arrd 2077. These assumptions were developed by
management with the assistance of an independent actuary. Discount factors are

determined close to the end of each reporting period by reference to the interest rates of
a zeto coupon government bonds with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the retirement benefit obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial
benchmarks and management's historical experience.

Risks Assoc, ated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Association to actuarial risks such as inveshent risk, interest rate

risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

i. trt€rest Risk

The present value of the retirement benefit obligation is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a

decrease in the interest rate of a reference govemment bonds will increase the
plan obligation.

ii. Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the retirement benefit obligation is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants during their employment
and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life expectanry and salary
of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan obligation.
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c, Other Infarmation

The information on the sensitivity anatysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions,
asset-liability matching strategf, and the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows
related to the retirement plan are described below:

Sensitioity Analysis

Each sensitivity analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was prepared by
remeasuring the retirement benefit obligation at the actuarial valuation report date after
first adjusting one of the current assumptions according to the applicable sensitivity
increment or decrement, based on changes in the relevant assumption that were
reasonably possible at the valuation date, while all other assumptions remained
undranged. The sensitivities were expressed as the corresponding change in the
retirement benefit obligation.

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the retirement benefit obligation as at
December 37,2A172

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Assumption

December 31,,2017
Discount rate
Salary increase rate
Withdrawal rate

Regular corporate income tax
Final tax at2A%

'J.Yo

notL/o

10To

3,521.248
3,322,627

197,757)

3A51A81)
3,256,827)

193,253

(P
(

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all
other assumptions constant When. calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liabitty
recognized witfrin the statements of financial position.

22. TAXEXPENSE

The components of hx expense as reported in the statemenb of comprehensive revenues are
presented below:

2018 2017

P 592,652 P 877,919
LA03,353 834,T14

P 7.996.00s P 1,.772.233

As mentioned in Note 1., the Association is exempt from the paym,ent of income tax under
Section 30c of the National Internal Revenue Code. However, the Associatior/s income from
renhl is subjected to regular income taxof 3A%.
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In 2073, the Association donated computer equipment to Alexis G. Santos National High
School, Masagana Public High Sdrool and Lolomboy National High School amounting to
P764P5A. Likewise, the Association donated computer equipment of Y147,A45 to San Gabriel
Elementary School in 2012, science equipment package of P73,550 in 2011 to Turo
Elemenhry School located in Bocaue, Bulacan and P80,000 in 2010 to Sta. Maria Elementary
School located in Poblacion, Sta. Maria, Bulacan. Under the Memorandum of Agreement
between the Association and Department of Education, the Association entitles to tax
incentives equivalent to the amount donated plus an additional50To of the amount donated
subject to approval by the Bureau of Intemal Revenue (BIR) pursuant to Revenue
Regulations No. 10-2003.

On]une 30,2014, the Association received an exception from the BIR for the Adopt a School
Program in favor of DepEd Turo Elementary School and Sta. Maria Elementary School. The
said exemption entifles the Association to a full deductibility of donation and entiflement to
a50o/o additional deduction. The donation also exempts the Association from paying donors
tax pursuant to R.A. 8525.

?3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The following are the significant commitrtents and contingencies involving the Association:

Optating Lease - Association as Lessor

The Association is a lessor on various offices with terms rangrng from one to ten years, with
renewal options, and includes annual escalation rates of 10%. The future minimum lease
payments receivable under these leases as at December 3L are as follows:

2018 2017

\ /itl{n one year
After one year but not more than five years
Due more than five years

P 999492 P 1,%9,363
7,745,477

P 999492 P 2.985.U0

Rental income recognized from these leases amounted toYL,975,508 in 2018 andP2,708,397
tn 2017 and presented as part of Others under Revenues account in the shtements of
comprehensive revenues (see Note 17).

Others

In the normal course of business, the Association makes various commitnents and incurs
certain contingent liabilities that are not given recognition in the Associatiort's financial
statements. Management believes that losses, if any, that may arise from these commitments
and contingencies will not have a material effect on the Associatiort's financial statements.
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24. RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTTVES AND POLICIES

The Association is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instuments.
The Association's financial assets and liabilities by category
sumrriarized in Note 24, T'be main types of risks are market risk, credit risk
liquidity risk.

The Association's risk management is coordinated with the Board of Trustees, and focuses
on actively securing the Association's short- to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the
exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial invesknents are m€rnaged to generate
lasting returns.

The Association does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes
nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Association is
exposed to are described below.

MarketRisk

The Association is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instrumenb and
specffically to currency risk, interest rate risk and certain other price risks which result from
both ib operating and investing activities.

F oreign Atrrenry Sensitioity

The Association has no significant exposure to foreign currency risks as most
transactions are denominated in Phitippine peso, its functional currency.

lnterest Rate S ensitioity

TI-re Association's policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-
term financing. The Association is exposed only to changes in market interest rates
through its cash and cash equivalents, short-term investntents and FITM investments as
there are no existing bank borrowings. All other financial assets (such as loans and other
receivables) and financial liabilities (such as accounts payable and other liabilities) have
fixed interest rates.

Interest income would have either increased or decreased by YL02,909 in 2018 and
Y387,267 ir.2077 assuming reasonably possible change in interest rates of +/-.82o/o for
regular savings arrd + / -1.49% for time deposit account in 2018 and2017, with effect from
the beg-inning of the year. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions. The calculations are based on the
Associatiort's cash and cash equivalents held at December 31,,2018 and,2017. All other
variables are held constant.

c. Other Pice Risk Sensitiztity

The Associatior/s market price risk arises from its investnents carried at fuir value
through profit or loss (AFS financial assets n 201n. It manages its risk arising from
changes in market price by monitoring the changes in the market price of the
investrnents. For these securities, an average volatility ol ?3% has been observed in both
years. If quoted price for these securities increased or decreased by that amount, profit
before tax would have changedbyP482B96 in2018 and P658137 n2017.

are
and

a,
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These investrnents are considered long-term strategic inveshents. No specific hedging
activities are underhken in relation to these investments. The inveshents are

co4tinuously monitored and voting rights arising from these equity inveshents are

utilized in the Associationis favor.

&editnisk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Association.
The Association is exposed to this risk for various financial irutruments, for example by
granting loans and reciivables to borrowers, placing deposits and investnent in bonds.

An analysis of the maximum exposure to credit risk, net of allowance for credit and

impairment losses, to credit risk exposures before taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancements for the components of the statements of financial position is
shownbelow:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term invesbnents
Loans and other receivables
Financial asseE at Amortized cost
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVOCI

2018

P L99,956,072
8L,248155

404,646,335
3,000 000

L31,X96,33\
27,500,040

2017

P 209,768,424
30,988,977

374,97'L,301.

99,593135
22,500,000

E__847j,45393 P 737&LZn_

The following tables show the credit quahty of financial assets by class (gross of allowance)
of the Association:

Nailhar Peci Drro Nar lmneird Past Due
High Standard Substantard ButNot
Grade Grade Grade Imoaired Imoaired Total

Cash and
cash equlvalents

Short-term lnvestments
Financial assets at

amortized cost
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVOCI
loans and receivables:

Consumption Ioans
Accmed income
Accounb receivable

P 799,956,072 P -
872N,1s5

3,000,000
t37,796331

27,500,000

- 35469376
- 34,091300

-_ 

7.92!3.230

B J00j5E E3&,52'N6

: 7s,e_6,48

----j-

l--:- P-JE9&AD E_5&7,W

P799,956,072
81,248,155

3,000,000
737,196,337
27f00,000

375,770,017

34,095300
1.9213,230

P_854,094n99

617,2M

---

High
Grade

Cash dnd
cash equlvalents P 2@,768,424

short-term investDrerts 30,98,917
Flnancial assets at FVTPL gg,SEl;tSs

HTMinvesErents 22"500,000

Loans and receivables:
Consumption loans
Accrued interest
Accrrred income
Accountsrecelvable 

--

Standard Substantard
Grade Grade

N.lth.r Past Dre Not Tmnairpd Past Due
ButNot
Impaircd Impaired Total

:':

334,5ffi,021 - 7898,7n

26,L75,n9
12889,183 ___:_

P3nrnJ23 E-- - e-iL39&1ZE

6fi7,W4

P---3/E7.w

P2W,76.8.A24
30,988.,9L7
99FE3,73s
22J00,000

w394,08

26,t75p19
12.889,183

PJE,3tr-66LPfi2,8foAz6



-45 -
The succeeding tables show the agrng analysis of past due loans and other receivables but
not yet impaired. Under PERS, a financial asset is past due when the counterparty has failed
to make a paymentwhen contractually due.

kss than
30 days

Loans and receivables:
Consumpdon E---A,SE1A?A

31 to 67to 91 to Over
60davs 9Odavs 180days 180days Total

E-JA3$2 P----J31,s72 E-IIL035 P--88lozt6 E----J5,9@82

20t7

H'.Ir .3'.:i,, ,fill,, d'rL .rnL roar

Loans and recelvables:
Consumption P - E---g8Jei P---jLr4253 P--l05.?29 P-844.4U P-----J.e%Aru

The Associatior(s management considers the net amount of the above financial assets that
are not impaired or past due for each reporting dates are of good credit quality. The bases in
grading the Associationjs financial assets are as follows:

7. HighGrade

These are financial assets which have a high probability of collection. The counterparty
has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security is readily enforceable.

2. Standard Grade

These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation and the
financial ability of the counterparty to pay but with the experience of default.

3. Substandard Grade

These are receivables where the counterparty has the experience of default and
probability of turning past due in the near future and/or are already past due.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to eamings or capital
arising from the Associatiorls inability to meet its obligations when they fall due without
incurring unaccephble losses or costs.

The Association-s Management Committee is responsible for the overall management and
oversight of the Associatior/s liquidity profile, while the day to day management of
liquidity is assumed by the Finance Deparbnent. A cash flow mismatch analysis is used to
measure the Associatior/s liquidtty. A maturity ladder is constructed to determine tlre
cumulative net excess or deficit of funds at appropriate time bands. Net cumulative outflow
limits have been put in place to ensure that the Association's funding requirements are not
shained.
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The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Associationls financial instruments:

Less than 3 tol2 Over
On Demand 3 Moaths Months l Year Total

Financial Asseb:
Cash and cash

equivalents
Short-term investments
Finaraial at

Amortized cost
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial at FVOCI
Loans and

Receivables - eross

715.87L886

Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable

and other liabilities 10,17O188
Liability on individual

equity value 6n32?;979
Claims payable on basic

contingmt bmefit 1,730,000
Basic contingent

benefit reserve 7.167,724 7.767,724

69039L.83r 42324 690.4U.155

E-33,@E4e v_N9-A3,2& I__i16!t65ggg

2tt7

Cumulative gap (eu451&94$ Ejg5z85.alr

P W,676,555

73L,196,331

P L75,n9,577 P -
- 81,248,155

: '_l**',

224,505.701 8,84721,

335.785,n8 %.095426

27,500,000

181.840.569

2Wilo,569

42324

P !99,9!fi,072
81,24&155

3,000000
731',196,337

27,500,000

471:t93.il\

&il.094,W9

70,2f3,572

6n322%9

1,730,0a0

Less tlun 3 to 12

FinancialAssets, -..@ 3Months Months

Cashand cash
equivalents P73,7A,005 P136,A47479 P -

Short-term investmenb 30,988,977
Financial assets at FVTPL 99,593,135
Financial at FVOCI
Loans and

Receivables - gross __-_:_ 23L565,%6 !.745,740

Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable

and other liabilities 1LB4A40
Liability on individual

equity value 601,799,3L6

Claims payable on basic
contingentbenefil 9W,862

Basic contingent
.benefitreserve 1.835.000 ____-:_ 

-_

77337L744 368,613,355 3L7U,657 170247.fi9 744309.66L

Over
1 Year Total

P - P 2A9,768,424
- 34,988,977
- 99,593,735

22500,000 2es00,000

147.747.509 381.459.185

757,U7 123ffi,457

- 54,!99,316

- 9W362

-___________:__ 1.835,000

Cumulative gap

676.?5L,618 -_-__:_ ____:_ 151.017 616.402.635

(D- 2,%ZE3\ P_3686r3355 P__32,1A,652 y_729.Wh,42 y__7UW.M6

To ensure that the Association mainhins a prudent and management level of cumulative
negative gap, the Association maintains a pool of highly liquid asseb in the form of short-
term ihvestrnents. Further, the Association has pending credit lines with the banks in the
event of funding its operations.
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CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

fl, FairValue of Financial Instrummts

The following tables set forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of financial
assets and liabilities, by category and by class, recognized as at December 3L:

Carrving Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Fhuncial Assets
cashandcashequivalents P 799,956,072P 199,956,072P 209,768,424P 209,768,424

short-term investments 87248X55 81,248155 30,988,E17 30,988,977

Financial assets at
amortizedcost 3 000,000 3,000,000

Loaru and other receivables 477,793,547 4M,@6,335 38U59,185 374,YnBUl

Finarrcial assets aIFVOCI 27F00,000 27100,000 2a500,000 22500,000

Financial assets aIFVTPL 737,696331 731\.696331' 995q3,135 9,5%,735

P----3 8a4fi99 P-i4&04689.? P---JA3@&I P----fi7,8?J,m-

Fhnrcinl Liabilities
Accounts payable and other

liabilities P 70,n3,572 P 70,,13572P 12,385,457P 72385,457

Liability on individual
equity value 677,322,979 677,3?2,979 607,799316 6c[1993L6

Claims payable on basic
contingentbenefit 1,730,000 L730,000 1,835,000

Basic contingent bmefit
reserve 1.,167.721 7,767:724 982'862

p___53!A34t5E E____690t134J55 E___316,&2,635 P___SMAL6&

The methods and assumptions used by the Association in estimating the fair value of the
financial instuments are as follows:

i. Cash and cash equioalents and short-terminaestments

The carrying amounts approximate fair values given the short-term nature of
the instruments.

ii. Financial assets at FVTPL

For publicly traded equity securities, fair values are based on quoted prices

pubfthed in markets. For unquoted equity securities, fair value could not be

ieliabty determined due to the unpredictable timing of future cash flows and the

lack oi suitable methods of arriving at a reliable fair value. These are carried at

original cost less allowance for impairment loss.

iii. Financial assets at FVOCI, Financial assets at amortized eost and Loans and otlrer

receiaables

Financial assets at FVOCI, financial assets at amortized cost and loans and other

receivables are net of impairment losses. The estimated fair value of these financial

asseb represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows exPected to

be received. Long term interest-bearing loans are periodically repriced at interest

rates equivalent to the current market rates, to determine fair value.

1,935,000

982,862
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ia. Accannts payable and other liabilities, Liability on indhtidual eryity oalue, mtd Basic

c ontin g mt b enefit re s efl) e

These liabilities are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently

measured at amounts to which they are to be paid. Fair value of these short-term

liabitities approximates their carrying values.

b. FairVahrefii*archY

The Association uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair

value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

. Level1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities.

. Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the

recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

, Level3: techniques which use inputs which have a sigriificant effect on the recorded

fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on

the lowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

There have been no significant transfers among Levels 'J,,,2 artd 3 in the reporting
periods.

As at December 37, 2078 and 2A17, financial assets at FVTPL are the only financial assets

(nil for liabilities) measured at fair value.

The financial asset values are determined at fuir value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

2018 2077

P 472,900,558 P 340,350,M6
30J00,000 22,500,000

404,646,335 374,971.,301,

E_lLtE M6E93 P-J31e1ru.

All financial liabilities are categorized as Level3.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Associations' capital management objectives are to ensure the Associatior/s ability to
continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to members by pricing

products and services cornmensurately with the leve1 of risk.

The Association seb the amount of capital in proportion to its ov,erall financing structure,

i.e. equity and financial liabilities. The Association manages the capital sftlctffe and makes

adjustnents to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. [r order to maintain or adjust the capital structute, the Association

may adjust the amount of dividends paid to members or sell assets to reduce debt.
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The Association monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented

on the face of the statemenb of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods under
review is summarized as follows:

Total liabilities
Total fund balance

Debt-to.fund ratio.

Short-term investments
Financial assets at FVTPL
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
L:veshent property
Property and equipment

2018 2A77

P 697,708260 P 623,766495
256,956319 224324,660

___2-72L,90 _--2ze1&g

27. NON-ADMITTEDASSETS

The estimated amounts of non-admitted assets as defined in the Section 197 of the Insurance
Code and still subject to examination by the IC which are included in the accompanying
statements of financial position follow:

2018

T'

2242A7s
693,937

33,0OO,387
2,5L1,970

P 38.438.607

2017

P 1,250,000
13A781s0

2465,749
986p59

33490,780
9,745.4n

P____61A16,//5

28, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE

Presented below is the supplementary information which is required by the Bureau of
Lrtemal Revenue (BIR) under its existing revenue regulations to be disclosed as part of the
notes to financial statements. This supplemenhry information is not a required disclosure
under PFRS.

The information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year
required uhder RR 15-2010 are as follows:

a. O.utput Value-Added Tax (VAT)

The Association has no output VAT for the year 2018.

b. lnputVAT

Input VAT arising from various purchases were directly charged by the Association as

cost and expense.

c. Taxes on Importation

The Association has no tax on importation since it does not have any transactions which
are subject to importation tax.
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Excise Tax

The Association does not have excise tax in any of the year presented since it does not

have any transactions which are subject to excise tax.

Do.cumentary StmnpsTax

The Association did notpay nor incur documentary stamp tax during the year.

Taxes and Licenses

The details of taxes and licenses account are broken down as follows:

Real property tax
Percentage taxes
Municipal license and permits
Annual registration fee
Others

'tlithholding Taxes

The details of total withholding taxes for the
shownbelow:

Compensation and employee benefits
Expanded

P 69,98']..

49,942
7,28'L

s00
3%.604

P 521.308

year ended December 31, 2018 are

P 291,517
129,895

P 421,.412

h, Deficiency Tax Assessment andTax Case

As at December 37,2A18, the Association neither has any deficiency tax assessment with
ttre BIR nor does it has tax case outstanding or pending in courts or bodies outside the
BIR in any of the open years.

RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

Certain accounts in the 2018 financial statements were reclassified to conform with the 2017

financial statement presentation of accounts.
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The Board of Trustees
Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Associatiory Inc.
(A N on-Sto ck, N on-Profit Organiz ation)
35 Paseo del Congreso, Catmon
Malolos, Bulacan

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditin& the financial statements
of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (A Non-Stock, Non-Profit Organization) for the
year ended December 31-,2078, on which we have rendered our report dated April 15, 2019. Our
audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial stitements taken as
a whole. The following schedules as of and for the year ended December 3'1,,2A18 are presented
for purposes of additional analysis in compliance with the requirements of Securities Regulation
Code Rule 68, and are not required parts of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards:

"L. Schedule of Receipts or Income Other Than Contributions and Donations;
2. Schedule of Contributions and Donations;
3. schedule of Disbursements According to sources and Activities; and,
4. Tabular Schedule of Standards and Interpretations

Such supplementary information are the responsibility of management. The supplementary
information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit Jf the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

AMC & ASSOCIATES

dil D. c*,RL
By: Ariel D. Gonzales (,

Partner
CPA Certification No. 89570
TIN 169-588-077-000
PTR No. 7336494,Jan.7,2019, Makati City
BIR Accreditation No. 08-0035 W1.-2019

(Mar. 06, 2A19 l'loMar.05,2022)
BSP Accreditation (Category B)

(valid until Dec. 3'J,,2020)
IC Accreditation No. SP-2018/003-R

(Mar. 3, 2018 to Mar. Z, 2021)
SEC Acseditation No. 1331-AR-1 (Group C)

(Sep. 28, 201,6 to Sep.27, Z0t9)

April15, 2019

J\dtr
ASSOCMTES certified public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEC SCHEDULES FILED SEPARATELY

FROM THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIRM ACCREDITATION
Aquino, Mata, Calica & Associates
BOA Accreditation No, 4275 - vatid unril Jme 2& 2020
SEC Accreditation No. 0164-FR-2 (Group B) - September 14, 2016 to Septe'rber 13, 2019
BIR Accreditation No, 08-002582-0-2017 - valicl unril Decenrber 2'I, 2020
iC Accreditation No. F-2018/002-R - t\4arch 3, 2018 to IVIarchZ, ZOZ"L

BSP Accreditation (Category B) - valid until December 31, 2020
CQA CEA No. 0075-AF - March 20. 2018 to March 19. 2021

suite L805 - L8a7 cityland conilominiumL|, Town 2, H.v. Dela costa st,, Makati City, philippines
TeL No,: (02)847.0462 . FaxNo.: OD893,0287
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PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEEIT ASSOCIATION,INc.
(A N on-Sto ch N on-Profit Organiz ation)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3L, 201.8

General
Fund

Basic Benefit
Fund

Optional
Fund Total

Membership Fees/Dues Contribution
Gross Income

Interest on Deposits with Banks

Interest on Mortgage Loans

Interest on Collateral Loans

Interest on Certificate Loans

Other Income

Collection of receivables

Proceeds of deposib

Sales of stocks

TOTAL p 5454&99q. y____660,067,798- g-_*nX64,fl0- g.__746X8A,874

P 54,548,906 P 192,349,554 P

28,822,88L

310,856

19,740,752

14,237,420

404,646,335

P 246,898A60

7,306,46
28,822,887

310,855

19,700,752

14,237,420

4W645,335

24,957,724

7,306,446

24,857,724



PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEEIT ASSOCIATION,INC.
(A N on-Sto ck, N an-Profit Organization)

SCHEDULE OF DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31., 2018

General
Fund

Basic Benefit
Fund

Optional
Fund Total

Benefits Paid
Direct Expense

Commission Incentives
Operating Expenses

Loan Releases

Placement of Time Deposit
Bonds

Stocks

Purchase of:

Transportation
Office Equipment
Fumiture and fixtures

Other Disbursements

TOTAL

35,039,510

8155,000 P

39,75'1,,87'L

283_,0A,270

zz,ooo,aoa

40,96'1,,396

- 

-71.6,777

8,455,000

39,75L,971,

35,039,6L0

293,064,270

27,0A0,000

40,867,396

776,777

P 35,039,6L0 P 33L,27!,741, P 69578a73 P 434,999,924



Anngx "A"

Fage I oI 2
SCHEDULE OF CONTBIBUTI ONS/DONATIONS

Name of Foundatlonlorganlzatlon
PRAXIS FID€S MUTUAL BENEFITASSOCIATION INC.

SEC Reglstration No.
138293

For the vear ended. 
DECEMBER 31,2016

({
I'lo.

(D'
ilamr and Eddrs8g

{c}
Nrflonalttl

tq
Total Gontrllxrlons rre otc$rlrnpuuon'

'| c"sh n
Noncash I I

{Conplata Panil frlfrrc ts
nnd.hldrr}{drtr!

2 cash t]
Noncash I I

(Conplde Part fi tTiffera E

3 cash t]
Nomash I I

(Conpldte Pan lt Filara E
a ndtrrch Nlrrhtlbnl

4 cash t]
Noncash I I

(Cotnptate Pan ll iliFarc E
a ndnEch inil.lhtttial

5 cash trNoncash I I

(Conplate Part ll ideo is
e iAnerh snlrilrt lffil

5 cash t]
Noncash I I

(ConplgB Pan ltfdere E

7 cash fl
Noncash I I

(Comfiae Psn il lfiferc b
q 6.@rh -^nt.ihrdnal

I cash t]NMEsh I I
(conpteta Pan il hddre ta

a nanceqh conlilbfiMl

E c*h n
NoncaEh n

tcilnltlra lad il iirtG E
r -aFE-h er"rhtrria,l

ro csh n
f'f"rca"n f-I

lcomfiate Fwtil bEt'elr b
, a^.MEh M^bht*l.El

t1 Olhars (aggrEgate ot all c{Bltrlbulioffi.
$drlcir sra lfidfuldoa,lv belil pldo-ooo-ml P.,..-,.,...,.,.-.,..*.....,

cssh f]
Noncash Ll!y naliBnalty

I * :.:!rt-o-gt-_".t d-onor lnctudes lndlvlduals, pBrrrarsh]ps, corporailons, assoclattons, trusts and organlza[6ns.- lI supranltronaf organiathn, lndlEate plaEe of prlnclpal offlce tr dornklte
' contrlbuuom or donations reportaute oa rre sitreouia arE conlrlbutlons, a:anarons. granlB, bequssts, devisos, ahd glfis sl

money 0r Froparly, amot nlino to P100.0(X1.00 or more from each contibutor or donor-
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Name of Foundatlonl0rgankation
PR&flS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION INC.

SEC Eegistratlon No.
1382SS

Fortte year ended o="aMBERs1, zol8

(a)
No.

lrom
Part

!

(b!
Descrlption of noneash prcperty given

(c)
Falr Market Value

{or estimate)

{d)
Bate recelved

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

s

$

10

Signed under oatlr by th* tollowing:

Sioned this dav of 2019



PRAXIS FIDES MUTUAL BENEFIT ASSOCIATION, INC.

Schedule of Philippine Financial Ileporting Standards and InterPretations

Adopted by the Securitles and Exchange Commission and the

Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2018
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Framework for the Preparatlon and Presentation of Financial Statements

Ionceprual Framework Phase A: Objectives arld Qualitative Characteristics

Practice Statement Management Commentary

?hillpp*e Finarcinl RePortirrg S taulatds (PFRS)

PFRS 1
(Revised)

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

{mendnents to PFRS1: Adriitional ExeDrptions lor FLst-tirne Adopters

{mendments to PFRS 1: Liotted Exenrption fronr Conrparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for
:irst-time Adopters

{melrdments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperint'lation and Removal of Fixed Date for
first-time Adopters

\melr{orents to PFRS 1: Government Loans

{nendnrents to PFRS 1: Deletion of Shorctenl Exeurptior-rs

PFRS 2

ihare-based Paynrent

Amendnrenb to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellatioru

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Pa1,nrsnl Lrrt..*rns
Amendments to PFRS 2: Classificaiion and Measurement of Shate-based Payment
Trarmctiors

PFRS 3
'Revised)

Business Courbina tions

Amendnrent to PFRS 3: Remeasurenent of Previousl!, Helli Interests i1 a Joint Operation
b ffe ctiru ktn u nnt'1, 20'l 9)

PFRS 4

lnsurance Contracts

Anendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarmtee Conhacts

AnrendmentstoPFRS4:Applf ingPFRS9, FiilnnLial lilstililtctrts,wifiPFRS4, lttsiltrance

Contrilcts

PFRS 5 Non{urrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operatiorx

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Finmcial Inshumnts: Disdosures

Arnenttnents to PFI{S 7: Transition

Anendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 2 Reclassification of Finalcial Assets

Amentiments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date

and Transition

{mendnents to PFf$ 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial lnstrunrcnts

\nrendments to PFI€ 7: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

\mendnrents to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Olfsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Eflective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFAS 8 )perating Segments

PFRS 9

Financial htstruments (2014)

Amendnents to PFRS 9: Prepaynent Features widr Negative Conrpensarion*

leffe*itt lanutry '1, 2019)

PFRS 10

:onsolidated Financial Staterlents

Aurendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Anrendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFf€ 10: Sale or Contribution oI Assets between afl [nvestor and its
Associate or loinlVentute* (effcctioe date deferred indefnilelv)

Aorendments to PFRS10: Investment Entiiies - Appll'turg the Consolidation Exception



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

:
I

PFns 11

Joint ArrangeDrents

Amend$ents to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS U: Accounting for Acquisitions of lnterests in loint OPerations

A*"r"t*."t t" pfRS 11: Remeasilement of Previously Held Interests h a loint C)Peration

kffectftn laruorv 7, 2019)

PFRS 12

Disclosure oI Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Tralsition Guidance

Amendilents to PFRS 12: tnvestment Entities

A&endments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities - Applying ttre Consolidation ExcePtion

PrRS r.3

PrRs 14

PFRS 15

PFRS 16

Fair Value Measuement

Regulatory Deferral Accounb

Revenue frour Conracts witl't Customers

Leases* (elfectipe lanuary 1, 20'19)

f *.,,..,M6 a^nh a ** lp llp r th p I o tr r tttt 7 - 202'l )

I
:
:

Pttitipphn Acr;ol,lltiug Staulards (PAS)
ttl

PAS 1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Siatenents

Ao.".,.Lunt" to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial lnstruments and obugations

Arising on Liquiciation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of ltenrs of Other Comprehensive Inconte

Amendrnents to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

PAS 2 lnventories

lAs 7
;tatement of Cash Flows

{mendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

:AS 8 {ccounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estin1ates and Errors

lAs 10 lvmts AIter the RePorting Period

?AS 12

ncome Taxes

\nrenclments to PAS 12 - Defered Tax: Recovery' of Underlying Asses

A.nrenclments to PAS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax ASSetS for unfealizetl Losses

{arendment to PAS 12 ' Tax Consequences of Dividentls' (efpetior: fnunry 1' 2019)

1AS 16

?roperty, Plant and EquiPment

{mendments to PAs16: Bearer Plants

{"r"".1"*"6 b" PAS 16: Clarification of AccePtable Methods of Depreciation and

A.mortization

?AS 17 .eases

:As 19
'&evised)

inrployee Benefits

q$endrnenE to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans - Emplo)'ee Contributions

lAs 20 Accounting for Govemment Grants and Disclosure oI Govermlent Assistance

PAS 21
tl're Effece of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

AmendtrrenB: Net lnvestnrcnt in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23
(Revised) Anrendment to PAS 23: Eligibility for CaPitalization

?A924
lRevised)

Related Party Disclosures

PAS 26 Accounting urd Reporting by Retirenrent Benefit Plaro

PLs27
(Revised)

;eparate Financial Statenents

Amendilents to PAS 27: Investment Entities

AmendrDents to PAS 27: Equiq' Method in Separaie Financial Statements



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INfiRPRE"TATIONS Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

PAS 28
(Revised)

hvestnrenb in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amenclments to PFRS 10: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or roint Yefiue* (elfectiue date deferretl intlefnitely)

Amendnents to PAS 28: Inveshnent Entities - APPI)'ing the Consolidation Exception

A"let ctme;t to PAS 2& Measurement of Inveshnent ill Associates at Fair Value througll

Profit or Loss
ffi hrcrest in Associates affl Joint vennre (elfct:tiue

'nnntnt'1.2079\

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hlperinflationary Econonries

PAS 32

r^inmcial Instruments: Presentation

Amelrdmenls to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instrunents and Obligations

Arising on Liquidation

Anrendments to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Aurendnrents to PAS 32 Offsetting Fiflancial Assets and Finalcial Liabilities

PAS 33 Eamings Per Share

PAS 34 Interi$ Financial Reporting

PAS 36
Impairnrent oI Assets

Amendment to PAS 36: Recoverable Amorutt Disclosures for Non-financial Assets

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Conlingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Amendments to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods oI Depreciation and
Amortization

PAS 40
Investment Ploperty

Amendment to PAS 40: Reclassificatior to and lrolr hvestnrcna Property

PAS 41
Agriculture

Anrendmetlts to PAS 41: Bearer Plants

?hilippirc hterpretatiorrs - httenrational Ffuancinl Reportirtg lrtteryrctations Connnittee (IFRIC)

IFRIC 1 Aranges in Existing Decommissio[ing Restoration and Sinrilar Liabilities*

:FNIC 2 Vlembers'Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar Instruments

TFRIC 4 )etermirdllg Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

IFRIC 5
Rights to hterests Arising from Decomnissionin& Restoration ard Environmental

RehabilitaHol Furds'*

IFRIC 6
Liabilities Arising from Participating in a specific Market - waste Electrical and Electronic

Eouipnrent

IFRIC 7
Applying the Restatement APProach under PAS 29, Financial Reporting in
Hvnerinfla tionary Econonries

IFRIC 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives"

Amenclmens to PhilipPine InterPretafion IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivativest*

ITRIC 10 Interin Financial Reporting and Impaimrent

TFRIC 12 leruice Concession Arrangenents

IFRIC 14

PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mininum Funding Requirements and their
lnteraction

Amendments to Philippine hrterpretations IFRIC - 14, Prepayurents of a Minimum
Funding Requirement and their Interaction'r

:FRIC 16 Jedges of a Net Inveshmt in a Foreign Operation

:FRIC 17 )istributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners*'

:FRIC 19 lxtinguishing Financial Liabiuties witl't Etluit)' lnstrumene*'

,FRIC 20 itripping Costs in the Production Phase oI a Surface Mine*

FRIC 21 -evres

FRIC 22 ioreigrr Currency Transactiorc and Advance Consitleration

.FRIC 23 Jncertain5, Over ltrcorrre Tax Treatments (effective /a,runry 1, 2019)



* These standards will be effective for periods subsequent bo 2018 and are not early adopted by the ComPany.

e These standatds have been adopted in the preparation of financial statements but the Company has no significant transactions covered

in both years presented.
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTINC STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicabte

?hilippine Interyrctn{orc - Standlng lnteryretatiotrs Conilnittce (SIC)

sIc-7 flhoduction of ihe Euro

sIc-10 lovemment Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities

sIc-13 oifltly Conrolled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Ve1lhfers

src-15 )perating Leases - lncentives

sIC-25 ncome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of ar Entity or its Shareholders"

src-27 lvaluating the Substance of Traruactions lnvolving the Legal Form of a Lease

SIC.29 iervice Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

sIC-31 levenue - Barter Tra.nsactioru tnvolving Advertising Services*

sIc-32 htangible Assets - Web Site Costs*'
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
MALOLOS Cfry, BULACAN i s.s.

SWORN STATEMENT

KNOWN ALL TO MEN THESE PRESENTS:

I, Gener C. Luciano, of legal age, Filipino cTtizert, and with office at at 35 Paseo del
Congreso, Catmon, Malolos, Bulacan, after being duly sworn to law do hereby depose and
state:

That I am the President of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit AssociatiorL Inc., a non-
stock, non-profit association with posbl address located at 35 Paseo del Congreso, Catrnon,
Malolos, Bulacan

That as President of the said Association, I am in the position to attest to the accuracy
and completeness of the following:

1. Schedule o{ Receipts or Income Other Than Contributions and Donations;
2. Schedule of Contributions and Donations; and,
3. Schedule of Disbursements According to Sources and Activities.

IN WTINESS I4fHEREOF, This Certificate has been signed tlLis
2019, at Malolos City, Bulacan.

day of Malr28th

ilAL0Los clr ting to me his Passport No. P8284764A, issued at DFA
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Page No. jcJ

Book No. Vl

?,4,C9***\
1 Cener C.fuciano

Affiant

&fAY 2 S 20t9

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 2A19, at

.T$ANUE
Doc No. 187 Notary P.rclrc f the Provioce of BulaearF

6c€nrt]6,1 3r..2020
*, l;,.\ i.- ? 4.lli8..2{I18nrri!i$ &,rdt /r- n ,,t. 2n _1 . ';+r,ulo Bldg.

i{r.-r,L,r Di,_,,..y. Bu lacan
ft.$l I trJo 23476

Catrnt)

FYR
IBP

Series of2A19
No_.. O5.5850 ertiga$ Conter/LL.,rZS,/?$j-.8 for 2O19Iyll'i. li ri).npliairc+i N". V.f O!i3ir). (..t a-16



REPUBLIC OFT}IE PH]LIPPINES )
MALOLOS CITY,BTILACAN i s"s.

SWORN STATEMENT

KNOWN ALL TO MEN THESE PRESENTS:

I, Ramon V. Bagay, of legal age, Filipino citizery and with office at at 35 paseo del
Congreso, Catmorl Malolcs, Bulacan, after being duly sworn to law do hereby clepose and
state:

That I am the Chairman of Praxis Fides MutuaI Benefit Associatioru fnc., a non-
stock, norr-profit association with postal address located at 35 Paseo del Cangreso, Cataron,
IMalolos, Bulacan

That as Chairman and President of tlre said Association, I am in the position to attest
to the accuracy and completeness of the following:

1. Schedule of Receipts or Income Other Than Contributions and Donations;
2. Schedule of Cantributions and Donations; and,
3. schedule of Disbursements According to sources and Activities.

IN WTTNESS WHEREOF, This Certificate has been signed this 28th day of May
2019 at Malolos City, Bulacan

J'lAY

of
2 B 20lg

2419, atSUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this _day
0L0S CIf bgUtAgAIo- #fiantexhibiting to me his SSS No. 03_501246+4

Doc No. l sY

Pase No- 13t
Book No. l,rl
Series at2A19

Notary Pr,..,: r:

.lllt ir N {J . PUNIA[.AH
1t^!hu. Fro-vincs of Bulacan,6certrir€,r .11, fOpO'.',lu. ir\ i../ q-i.!,ld_?Ol_g

.FTft N+. ,

8P No. ,.,

I*CLE

-. 
,,. _.,,,r,.::.,q 

(: j,.y/l-r./ ?i1 ., riti{t for 2O19

' ",,, r, :, . l' ]. :*,; .' vi'J;ii: r',',',;: ; [. !"; . o t,



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
<TYPE CIIIY I MLINICIPALITY> ) s.s.

.,,^\i$Ay ffix?

SWORN STATEMENT

KNOl^ihI ALL TO MEN THESE PRESENTS:

I, Fr. |oseph DI. Cruz, of legal age, Filipino citizeo and with office at at 35 Paseo del
Congreso, Catmon, Malolos, Bulacan, after being duly sworn to law do hereby depose and
state:

That I am the Treasurer of Praxis Fides Mutual Benefit Associatiorl Inc., a non-
stock, non-profit association with postal address located at 35 Paseo del Congre$o, Catmon,
Malolos, Bulacan

That as Chief Financial Officer of the said Association, I am in the position to attest to
the accuracy and completeness of the foUowing:

1. Schedule of Receipts or Income Other Than Contributioru and Donations;
2. Schedule of Contributions and Danations; and,
3. Schedule of Disbursements According to Sources and Activities.

IN WITNESS WHEREOL This Certificate has been signed this 28th day of May
2019, at Maloips Citv, Bulacan.

AND SWORN to
; affiant exhibiting

i $ t{Ar Zgt*

before me this day of 2A19, at
to me his Passport No. P40458B6_4, issued at DFA_NCB

North on August 15. 2017.

Doc No. '4L
Pur. Nol---9-
Bo"okNo@
Series of2A19


